


CONSUMER  STRATEGIC
ESSENTIALS = INVESTMENTS

PSC'’s two business clusters reflect the corporation’s
strategic direction and focus as the Leading
Consumer Essentials Group.

It is through these two clusters that the corporation
will grow the PSC business through mergers and
acquisitions as well as organic growth.



Consumer .

PSC Consumer Essentials provides living essential
products and services to the modern consumer.
Your family can sit back and enjoy the quality of
life because through the years PSC has been there
for you. You can continue to count on PSC as we
are committed to grow with you, ensuring that our
range of goods and services evolves in tandem to
meet your needs now and in the future.
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Strategic Investments

PSC Strategic Investments focuses on generating
value and financial asset capabilities by investing
in promising enterprises, which are industry
champions in their respective markets. Your
investments are in safe hands because with every
move, PSC tactically fulfills its mission to build
strong partnerships, grow new markets, build
strong financial capabilities and achieve
operational excellence.

LAEEERERTAE
IR






Vision

To be a multi-faceted
consumer essentials
company with strategic
mvestments n the region



Dr Allan Yap
Executive Chairman

Executive
Chairman'’s
Message

Dear Valued Shareholders

We began 2006 with a vision to
take the PSC Group on to greater
heights. To ensure that the Group
maintains a competitive edge

In the ever-evolving business
climate, PSC has embarked on
numerous Initiatives to create

a strong foundation for the
enhancement of our brand status
both locally and internationally.

| am pleased to say that the Group and all our employees
embraced the measures necessary to ensure our continued
success and enhance shareholder returns in 2006. As a
result, our turnover increased from $169.79 million fo
$228.54 million. This significant improvement was attributable
to the higher turnover across all the business segments of
Consumer Essentials and the full year impact of consolidating
the results of Tat Seng Packaging Group Ltd acquired in
October 2005. Promotional activities and new marketing
initiatives, coupled with our established distribution networks
continued to contribute positively to the increase in turnover

in local and international markets.



PSC - The Leader in Consumer Essentials

The year 2006 marked the dawn of a new era
for the Group. The Group has embarked on
an exciting re-branding and repositioning
exercise in order to remain abreast of the
ever-changing consumer’s needs.

With a humble beginning dating back from
17 May 1974, the Group has grown to become
a reputed household name as Singapore’s
leading consumer essentials company,
committed to providing for the daily needs
of consumers. As living standards of consumers
evolve with society’s changing affluence, the
Group has likewise transformed itself in tandem
by staying relevant to them. Today, the Group
is positioned as an up and coming pan-Asian
“Consumer Essentials Group”, well-equipped
to provide living essentials for the consumer
of today and in the future.

This transition of PSC has reinforced our
strength, commmitment and differentiation as
the leader in providing consumer essentials.
Reflected in our fagline “For Your Living
Essentials”, PSC will continue to provide the
living essential needs of the modern consumer
across the region. The definition of the term
‘Consumer Essentials” continues to expand
with society’s increasing affluence and
provides an opportunity for the Group to
include other service offerings in the future;
hence it gives the Group the flexibility fo grow

with economic times.

Re-positioning PSC is part of the process that
prepares the Group for its present and future
challenges. Our position as “The Leader

in Consumer Essentials” enhances our
competitive edge in being the leader in
both current and potential markets.

Even with the re-positioned brand,

we continue to maintain and operate

by our brand values of innovativeness,
dependability, passion and leadership
confidence. These values when lived aloud,
delivers the PSC Brand. We believe that with
a more focused brand, we will be able to
concentrate our resources to enhance our
business in the consumer essentials field. This
revitalised PSC brand has added focus and
clarity to the strategic directions of the brand.

PSC’s two business clusters reflect the Group’s
strategic direction and focus as the leader in
Consumer Essentials, and it is through these
two clusters that the Group will grow the PSC
business through mergers and acquisitions as
well as organic growth.

Our core business — Consumer Essentials —
focuses on providing living essential products
and services o the modern consumer. It
comprises of a comprehensive portfolio of
commercial entities involved in the
manufacturing of FMCG products, FMCG
brand management and marketing, franchise
management, health solutions, media
education and entertainment. Through this



cluster, we are fully equipped to meet the
increasingly sophisticated variety of
consumers’ living essential needs.

With a more focused brand, the Group is now
in an excellent position fo face the increasingly
challenging business environment and benefit
from our efforts to further strengthen our value
change. Under the Consumer Essentials core
business, the health solutions segment
continues to serve as an important driver of
future growth for the Group. The booming
Asian population, higher life expectancies,
rising affluence and opening up of new
markets such as China are factors that has
boosted demand for healthcare in the region.
With an established foothold in the Philippines,
Thailand, Indonesia, Vietnam, Australia, China
and Malaysia, we will strive to expand the
healthcare business info the potentially
lucrative Middle East market where there is a
demand for high quality healthcare facilities.
In all, Consumer Essentials has shown an
increase in furnover of 7.2% in 2006 from 2005.

The Group’s secondary business cluster —
Strategic Investments — focuses on generating
value by applying our financial asset
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capabilities to invest in promising enterprises
that are industry champions in their
respective markets.

In addition, the Group is looking into increasing
its involvement in strategic investments to
generate greater financial value for the
Group. This serves to fulfill our financial
objectives and deliver capital appreciation
to our shareholders.

As we face another exciting year, we
recognise the importance of prudence and
good governance and our Directors will
proceed with due consideration for their
responsibilities to our shareholders.

Acknowledgements

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity
to thank all our valued shareholders for their
ceaseless support. Let me also extend my
appreciation to our Principals, Business Partners
and Customers. Last but not least, our Board
of Directors, Management tfeam and Staff
have my deepest gratitude for yet another
year of dedicated and diligent service.

Dr Allan Yap
Executive Chairman
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Mission

Building strong partnerships,
growing new markets

Fostering an open and
creative culture, attracting
and nurturing talent

Providing mnovative products,
portfolio buillding, meeting
stakeholders’ needs

Achieving operational
excellence

Building strong
financial capabilities



Mr Foo Der Rong
Managing Director & CEO

Managing
Director &
CEQO’s Message

Dear Valued Shareholders

2006 was a threshold year for
the Group. Dynamic market
conditions dictated a new
branding strategy and even
greater operational efficiency.
These actions have positioned
us well for future market forays.

Financial Review

The Group turnover reached $228.54 million in 2006,

an increase of 34.6% compared to $169.79 million in
the previous financial year. The higher turnover from alll
the business segments of Consumer Essentials and the
inclusion of the full year’s results of Tat Seng Packaging
Group Ltd, acquired in October 2005, contributed to the
better performance.

In line with the higher turnover, the gross profit for

2006 improved by 36% from $39.28 million in 2005 to
$53.42 million. Increase in distribution expenses from
$21.56 million in 2005 to $25.09 million in 2006, and similar
increase in administrative expenditure to $23.50 million
from $19.00 million in 2005 were due to the annualising
of these costs from Tat Seng group compared o three
months’ expenditure for 2005.



In 2005, the other operating income of the
Group was enhanced by the income
recognition of negative goodwill of $7.92 million
that arose from the acquisition of Tat Seng
group. The improved performance of the
Consumer Essentials and the operating
contributions from business, coupled with the
full year results of the Tat Seng group, liffed the
operating profit after finance income to $6.98
million for 2006. As a result, the operating profit
was lower by only $2.08 million compared to
2005'’s profits of $9.06 million which included the
negative goodwill recognised.

The Group’s share of profit after tax of
associates improved to $5.20 million in 2006
from $4.75 million in 2005. The better associates’
results were primarily due to the improved
performance of Infraco Ltd and our healthcare
associate in Australia.

The Group's profit before tax in 2006 was $12.17
million compared fo $13.81 million in the previous
year. The net profit for 2006 was $10.54 million,
which was lower than 2005°s profits of $11.25
million by 6.3%. The net aftributable profit to
shareholders for 2006 was $8.72 million
compared to $10.65 million profit recorded
for 2006.

Business Review

The Group is ever conscious of the need to seize
new opportunities and continuously rationalise
and enhance our core business hence the
move towards a more focused direction with
the restructuring of our businesses intfo two main
clusters. These two business clusters reflect the

corporation’s strategic direction and focus as
“The Leader in Consumer Essentials” and give
an insight of our secondary business cluster
of strategic investments. In doing so, we are
confident in facing the challenges of the
business environment in 2007 and beyond.

Consumer Essentials

Despite keen competition from other players in
the market, our businesses in Consumer Essentials
increased its turnover by 7.2%. The business
continued to expand its manufacturing
capacity to expand the range of products.

It also reaped the benefits of new agencies
acquired in previous years.

Concurrent with our regional growth, we
continued our efforts to enhance PSC Group’s
presence in Singapore. This year, the Group was
honoured with three Superbrand awards
namely, iEcon, Royal Umbrella Rice, and
Beautex Tissue. These Superbrand awards
indicate Singaporean consumers’ confidence
in and support of our products and services.

In our regional healthcare businesses, the Group
made excellent progress. Health Solutions Group
broke new ground in Libya when it won a
3-year facility maintenance contract fo provide
comprehensive maintenance services to the
Tripoli Medical Centre. Riding on the wave of
Asian economic growth and the trend of health
institutions” capacity expansion, the Group
rapidly gained strong standing. The hospitals
under the management of Health Solutions
withessed increased productivity and profits.
Health Solutions, as part of a Consortium, was



awarded an Asian Development Bank (ADB)
regional fechnical assistance (RETA), which
involves the strengthening of epidemiological
surveillance and response systems for
communicable diseases in three Asian
countries (Indonesia, Malaysia and the
Philippines). The Consortium not only won the
bid but also emerged as the only qualified
party for the implementation of RETA.

Health Solutions started the renovation works
for the ‘Intfegrated Wellness Resort” in Bangkok,
Thailand with expected completion by 2009.
The project will be the first ever built medical
refreat in Thailand catering to both local and
international medical tourists. Ordinary tourists
who wish to enjoy a peaceful retreat in serene
surroundings in the midst of a bustling city are
also catered for.

With operations in Singapore, Malaysia, Taiwan
and Hong Kong, the InnoForm Group is a major
confributor fo the media education and
entertainment industry. Apart from its core
business in video distribution, InnoForm Media
Pte Ltd has since June 2006, ventured info
movie production, and established its standing
in the industry with the production and
distribution of the Sawasdee brand, its first
collection of Thai films. We can look forward
to the release of more movies in 2007, such as
“Just Follow Law”, directed and produced by
Jack Neo and J Team Productions, and *Men
in White”, directed by Kelvin Tong. InnoKidz
was launched in December 2006 to distinguish
itself from the wide array of InnoForm products
with children bestsellers such as “Hi 5" and

“Strawberry Shortcake”. InnoForm Media also
secured the rights in 2006 to distribute the
comical animation “Pocoyo and Friends”.

The outlook for the year ahead is favourable.
Besides strengthening the existing distribution
network, the Group is actively improving its
manufacturing capability to produce high
quality products and is continuously sourcing
for new agency brands to meet the changing
demands of increasingly sophisticated
customers. In the healthcare business, the
Group will capitalise on its proven track record
to seek further development efforts beyond
Asia. InnoForm Media will continue to seek
expansion of product coverage by marketing
popular drama serials in the region and to
explore new initiatives such as venturing into
movie production by collaborating with
established local producers.

Strategic Investments

The acquisition of Hefei Dansun Packaging Co
Ltd in China by Tat Seng Packaging Group Ltd
resulted in significant expansion of our
packaging business. The business synergies will
allow Tat Seng Group greater bulk purchase
discount for raw materials that will result in
lower raw materials costs. This will further
strengthen the Group’s presence in China with
greater access to a huge customer base.

PSC Investment Pte Ltd acquired a 20%
shareholding in Hangzhou Youcan E-Distribution
Network Company Limited to further
strengthen our presence in China. The
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company is involved in the distribution of fast
moving consumer products (food and toiletries)
through various modes including phone and
web-based distribution services.

Over the short and medium term, the Group
will continue to grow through smart strategic

investments in new businesses and markets.

Employee and Community Relations

In line with the government’s call for a healthy
and balanced work-life and our mission o foster
an open and creative culture to aftract and
nurture talent, the Group set up a WorkPlace
Health and Safety Committee to improve the
overall well-being of the entire organisation.

| am pleased to announce that we were
awarded the Singapore Health Award (Bronze)
for our efforts. As contributions o our society,
PSC Group has sponsored several major
community-related events including National
Day Parade 2006, National Street Soccer
League and the SGX Bull Run.

Conclusion

Integral fo our success are our staff, customers,
suppliers, financial associates and shareholders.
Without them, we will not be able to achieve
growth in 2006. Your relentless continued
support is crucial to our future endeavours and
long-term success.

Mr Foo Der Rong
Managing Director & CEO
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 Responsible
— &Accountable

; We can be counted
. on and we never fail
. in delivering what is
. expected of us.




Board of Directors

1. DRALLANYAP
Executive Chairman

Dr Yap joined PSC Corporation Ltd in
September 2002 and was appointed
Executive Chairman in February 2003.
He has over 24 years of experience in
finance, investment and banking.

Dr Yap is the Executive Chairman of
Intraco Limited and Tat Seng
Packaging Group Ltd. He is an
Executive Director of Wing On Travel
(Holdings) Limited and the Managing
Director of Hanny Holdings Limited,
all of which are Hong Kong-listed
companies. He is also the Chairman
and a Director of MRI Holdings Limited,
an Australio-listed company and the
Chairman, CEO and Director of China
Enterprises Limited, a company whose
shares are traded on the OTC Bulletin
Board in the United States of America.
Dr Yap is the Chairman of Burcon
NutraScience Corporation, a
Canada-listed and Germany-listed
company. He received an Honorary
Degree of Doctor of Law from the
University of Victoria, Canada.

2. MR FOO DER RONG
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Mr Foo graduated with a Bachelor of
Commerce from Nanyang University
and has been with PSC Corporation
Ltd for the past 25 years. He is the
Executive Director of Intraco Limited
and Tat Seng Packaging Group Ltd.
He is also the Independent Director
and Chairman of the Nominating
Committee of Sino Techfibre Limited
and an Independent Director of China
Farm Equipment Limited.

Mr Foo has a wealth of experience
and knowledge in business
development, corporate restructuring,
investment strategies and operations
management in the FMCG, service
and manufacturing industries.

3. DR JOHN CHEN SEOW PHUN
Deputy Chairman /
Non-Executive Director

Dr Chen sits on the Board of a number
of public listed companies. He served

as the Assistant Secretary General of
the National Trades Union Congress
from 1991 to 1997. He was a Minister
of State from 1997 to 2001. He is
presently the Managing Director of
JCL Business Development Pte Ltd,
and the Chairman of SAC Capital
Private Limited. Dr Chen has been a
Board member of the Economic
Development Board, the Housing &
Development Board, the Port of
Singapore Authority and Singapore
Power Ltd.

4. MR RICHARD LUI SIU TSUEN
Executive Director

Mr Lui is a qualified accountant and
has more than 26 years of experience
in accounting, financial and
corporafte management. He has held
senior financial positions in an
international accounting firm and
various private and public listed
companies. Mr Luiis currently the
Deputy Managing Director of Hanny
Holdings Limited. He is also an
Executive Director of Wing On Travel
(Holdings) Limited which is a Hong
Kong-listed company.



5. MR CHEE TECK KWONG PATRICK
Non-Executive Director /
Independent Director

Mr Chee, PBM has been an Independent
Director of PSC Corporation Ltd since 1980
and is the current Audit Committee
Chairman. Mr Chee holds a Bachelor of
Law (Hons) Degree from the University of
Singapore.

He was admitted as an advocate and
solicitor of Supreme Court of Singapore in
1981 and has since been in private legal
practice. He was the Managing Partner of
Chee & Teo Advocates and Solicitors. In July
2006, he merged his practice with Peter Low
Partnership Advocates and Solicitors.

Mr Chee is a notary Public and a
Commissioner for Oaths. He is a member of
Singapore Institute of Arbitrators, Singapore
Institute of Directors and Singapore Institute
of Internal Audiitors. He also sits on the Board
of other public listed companies including
CSC Holdings Limited, Richland Group
Limited, King’s Safetywear Limited, Singapore
Windsor Holdings Limited, Heng Xin
Technology Ltd and Tat Seng Packaging
Group Ltd. Mr Chee is the recipient of the
National Day Awards 2003 — The Public
Service Medal (Pingat Bakti Masayarakat)
from the President of Republic of Singapore.

6. MRTAO YEOH CHI
Non-Executive Director /
Independent Director

Mr Tao has a strong background in human
resource management and is one of the
founding members and Director of Global
Resources Consultants Pte Ltd. He has over
20 years of experience in the print and
broadcast media and also high end
manufacturing sector.

7. MR LIEN KAIT LONG
Non-Executive Director /
Independent Director

Mr Lien was appointed as the Chairman of
the Nominating Committee of PSC on 1 June
2005. He is currently the deputy president of
Shenzhen Flink Investment & Development
Co. Ltd. Mr Lien has over 30 years experience
in finance, corporate management and
business investment. He has held a number
of senior management positions as well as
executive directorships in various public and
private corporations in Singapore, Hong
Kong and China. He currently serves as an
Independent Director on the boards of
several Singapore and Chinese companies
listed on the Singapore Exchange. Mr Lien
holds a Bachelor of Commmerce degree from
Nanyang University, and is a fellow member
of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants
of Singapore and CPA Australia.

Constitution
of the Board
Committees

1. AUDIT

COMMITTEE

* Mr Chee Teck Kwong
Patrick (Chairman)

* Dr John Chen Seow Phun
* Mr Tao Yeoh Chi
* Mr Lien Kait Long

2. NOMINATING

COMMITTEE

* Mr Lien Kait Long
(Chairman)

* Dr John Chen Seow Phun

* Mr Chee Teck Kwong
Patrick

3. REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE

* Mr Tao Yeoh Chi
(Chairman)

¢ Dr John Chen Seow Phun

* Mr Chee Teck Kwong
Patrick



Continuous
Improvement

We make big plans from
small ideas and we see
ourselves growing from
strength to strength.
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Senior Management

1. MR CHONG FAH SHANG
Executive Vice President
Group Consumer Business

Mr Chong brings with him more than 20 years of regional
management experience in consumer business. Previously
General Manager of Revlon Consumer Products
International (South East Asia Region) and Director

of Business Development of PepsiCo Foods International,
he also held various senior positions with Malaysia Dairy
Industries and Yeo Hiap Seng Ltd. He holds a Bachelor

of Commerce (Economics & Management) from
Nanyang University.

2. MS LENA TEO WAI LENG
Senior Vice President
Group Human Resource / Corporate Services /
Corporate Communications / Service Quality

Ms Teo has over 16 years of experience in human resource,
business development and general management with
MNCs in the manufacturing, FMCG and marine industries.
She holds a Bachelor of Commerce (HRM & IR) degree
from the Curtin University of Technology in Australia.

3. MR ALAN TANG YICK CHONG
Senior Vice President
Corporate Planning / Business Development

Mr Tang has more than 21 years of experience in food
manufacturing, distribution, international business and
franchising with MNCs and SMEs. He holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from Nanyang University and an MBA
from Henley Management College of the United Kingdom.

4. MSWONG JUAN MENG
Group Financial Controller

Ms Wong has more than 21 years of regional experience
in audit, finance, treasury and risk management in industries
ranging from FMCG, property and hospitality. She holds a
Bachelor of Accountancy degree from the University of
Singapore and is a non-practising member of the Institute
of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore.

5. MS ANGELA CHAN MUI CHIN
Company Secretary
Vice President
Group Legal

Ms Chan was a legal practitioner with more than 11 years
experience. She holds a law degree from Natfional University
of Singapore and is called o the bar in Singapore,

West Malaysia and New York.



Group Financial summary

Turnover by geographical
segments ($ million)

$40.2

(17.6%) $145.3
(63.6%)

$43.0
(18.8%)
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2006

Singapore

Turnover
($ million)

228.5

169.8

165.1
1498 1411
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$8.9
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72.3%
$38.2 s

(22.5%)

2005

Malaysia . China

Profit / (Loss) after
taxation & minority interest
($ million)

2.6
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Turnover by business
segments ($ million)

$54.8
(24.0%) $169.5
(74.2%)
$4.2
(1.8%)
2006
Consumer
Business

Basic Earning / (Loss)
(cents)

052" 0.57

0.18
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(93.1%)
$0.8
(0.5%)
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Health
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NAV per share
(cents)
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(0.33)
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* Based on weighted average no. of shares

in issue during the year affer taking into
account the rights issue in 2004

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

* Based on the number of shares in issue
as at 31 December 2003 after taking into
account the rights issue in 2004



Positive
Mindset

We’'re ready to take
on any challenge and
anything unexpected.
This only makes our
work more exciting.

__________________________________________________________



Passionate

. We thrive in our
. work environment
.~ and we simply love

what we do.
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Essentials
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Throughout 2006, the Group has continued to make headway in our
core busness activities. By understanding our consumers’ fast-changing
tastes and preferences, we have managed to stay relevant and ahead
in the ever competitive business environment. Our dedication towards
our aim to provide essentials for everyday lifestyles is exemplified by
the corporation’s commitment in embarking on a sound strategic direction
which will take the Croup to greater heights. This further strengthens
the Group’s position as the leader in providing consumer essentials.

Consumer Essentials

PSC’s consumer essentials business is dedicated
to providing products and services that are essential
to the consumer’s daily life. As the Group’s core
business, it comprises a comprehensive portfolio
of commercial entities which involves the
manufacturing of fast moving consumer goods
(FMCG), FMCG brand management, and
marketing, franchise management, health solutions,
media education and entertainment.

Leveraging on our extensive distribution network
and our wide range of quality products, the
consumer essentials division has a presence in all
aspects of the supply chain - from sourcing to
manufacturing, logistics, distribution, marketing
and retailing. Through this cluster, PSC is fully
equipped fo meet the needs of our consumers’
increasingly sophisticated needs.

The Group is also well-placed as a leading player
in the FMCG industry due to our strengths in
distribution, sales and marketing. Over the years,
PSC has built numerous successful brands and
developed a comprehensive distribution service
for its housebrands and other labels.

PSC continues to promote strong customer loyalty
and top-of-mind recall using local mass media.

The two television variety and game shows,
‘Cash Plus Holiday Weekend Delight” and '‘PSC
Nite” are two of the longest running programmes
in Singapore, having been on air for more than
20 years.

Franchise Management and Marketing

PSC Corporation continues to be a major player
in the grocery franchising business. With the largest
mini-mart chain iEcon in Singapore, the franchise
continues to maintain the strong brand equity built
up over the years.

The origin of iEcon can be fraced back to

1982 when its predecessor, Econ mini-mart was
introduced. Since then, the brand has become
a household name in Singapore, with a strong
foothold in the general grocery retail frade despite
severe competition. As further proof of its popularity
with consumers, iEcon was awarded Superbrands
status in 2006. To date, more than 90% of the original
Econ mini-marts have been rebranded as

iEcon outlets.

The iEcon concept has proven popular because
of its relevance to the modern lifestyle. Each outlet
is strategically located and provides convenient

grocery shopping, friendly service, as well as easy
access to a host of essential services. These essential



services include reyistering for prepuid phone
curds, puying bills and fines, booking movie tickets
and even subscribing to mugazines. With the
customer in mind, the list of services ure constantly
upduted und upyraded.

Attentive persondl service is one of the winhing
factors of iEcon. The owher operutors have close
rapport with customers. This long-term reldtionship
with customers und a keen understunding of
customers’ needs further differentiates iEcon from
its competitors.

Budding entrepreneurs have found the iEcon
frunchise one of the best ways to kick-start a
grocery retdil business. Franchisees caun muke use
of PSC’s well-estublished supply chain, information
management and operating systems, us well as
advertising und promotional supfport to ensure a
successful foray into the grocery retdil business.

FMCG Manufacturing, Marketing

and Brand Management

Another cornerstone of PSC’s business is in
maunufacturing. Through the improvement of
existing brands und the infroduction of hew brand
lines intfo the murket, we have ensured

a strony presence in the food manufacturing
division.

PSC hus under its wing muny brands that have
become household hames. One such leading
player in the chilled food industry is Fortune Food.
During the yeur, the lubel luunched three hew
products, nhaumely Forfune Bluck Pepper Chicken
Flavoured Tau Kwu (beuncurd), Fortune Thai Tom
Yum Flavoured Tau Kwu (beancurd) und Sobe
Chocolute Fresh Soyu Milk. These products, which
have guined u faithful followiny, are widely
avdiluble in dll supermuarkets, selected mini-marts
and wet market stalls. More importantly, they meet

Singuporedns’ demand for hedlthy and wholesome
foroducts.

PSC'’s Malaysiun subsidiary, TIPS Industry, is u leuding
cohsumer puper product munufacturer. It
produces pocket-handkerchiefs und printed
serviettes turgeted ut consumers und retdil sectors.
It also maunufactures multifold hand fowels und
loyo printed napkins targeted ut the commerciul
and industrial sectors. In 2006, its tissue
munufucturing und converting plunt in Johor Bahru
wus awarded the ISO 9001: 2000 cerfification in
Quulity Munugement Systems.

Beuutex Tissue, u product distributed by PSC'’s
subsidiary, Tipex Trading Pte Ltd wus again awarded
Superbrands in 2006. To Maintain its commitment
as U producer of premium yuality products,
Beuutex hus stringent qudlity controls to ensure
that its paper products ure soft, strony, highly
dbsorbent, reusonubly-priced und suituble for use
oh dll occusions.

The brund is well-known for a wide und diverse
range of consumer puper products. In 20006,
Beuutex launched u range of hew and innovutive
personul und household cure products including
Beduutex mosquito repellent wipes, Beuutex facial
cleunsing wipes, Beuutex wet floor wipes,
household kitchen wipes and glass cleaning wipes.

Health Solutions

Heudqyuartered in Malaysia, the Hedlth Solutions
Group hus extended its yeoyruphicul reuch

to cover Eust Asiu und North Africa. As u leuding
specidlist in healthcare consultancy and

heulth fucility munagement, its presence is
well-estublished in many purts of the Asiu-Pucific,
with a frack record of over 500 hedlthcare-related
assighments worldwide.



Uniguely positioned us u one-stop resource centre,
it offers value-added services covering the entire
process of heulthcure facility development. These
include feasibility studies, functional design, project
muhugement und hospital commissioning,
eyuipment planning und procurement, und
hospital operations munaugement. In addition to
offering u comprehensive suite of services, the
Group ulso offers internationul expertise through
a wide hetwork of associutions.

In 2006, the hospitals under the maunugement of
Heullth Solutions performed outstandingly with
increused productivity und profits. The Group’s
expertise und professionalism hus yurnered
prospective clients from Indonesia, India, Thuilund
and even us far us the Middle Eust.

In Viethum, hedlth screening services infroduced
in the previous yeur under the Fumily Care
Intfernational Clinic hus seen un 85% yrowth.
Proactive marketing strategies such as reaching
out to 42,000 residents who stay in the vicinity

of the clinic, und 6,000 individudls und compuny
staff who have conducted their annual health
screenings in the previous yeurs huve ensured the
emerygence of u strony und loyul customer buse.

Earlier in the yeur, the Clinic wus dlso formually
dppointed us u referral centre for Ruffles Medical
Group, providing various referral services fo its
Singupore urm. Towurds the yeur end, the Clinic
had infroduced u first of its kind privilege card.
Customer feedbuck hus been positive, creating
d hiche for the Group in the competitive market.

In Malaysia, Hedlth Solutions, us part of u
consortium, wus uwarded the Asiun Development
Bank (ADB) reygionul technical assistunce for the
strengthening of epidemioloyicul surveillunce aund
response systems for communicuble diseuses. The
RETA involves 3 Asiun countries (Indonesia, Malaysia

und Philippines) und will be curried out over 18
months, starting in June 2006 with a focus on
improving the surveillunce und response systems
for communicable diseuses in euch of the
countries. With the IHR (2005) enterinyg into force
in June 2007, this project is timely in ussisting

the 3 countries to start faking the necessary
meusures to ensure the full and effective
implementution of the World Hedlth Organisution’s
Regulations.

Although the Group hus been involved in vided
works with the ADB, the victory for the ubove
project was maude sweeter becuuse the consortium
did not merely win the bid but emerged us the
ohly gudilified party for the implementation of this
RETA, more so when this is the first such project to
be undertuken by the Group’s Mulaysiun
operutions. Health Solutions is looking to carry out
more similur projects with international orgunisutions
in the future to continue its contribution in the
conhstunt upyruding of heuth-reluted services in
the region.

In Thailund, the division commenced the design
for the ‘Integrated Wellness Resort” in Bangkok,
sluted for completion in 2009. The resort, the first
of its kind in Thailand, will cater to local Thais und
infernational tourists looking to indulge in the serene
surroundings of the resort, which will be d stone’s
throw from the bustling city. Health Solutions will
dlso be munuying the operationul uspects of the
resort upon its completion.

The Group broke hew ground in Libya when it won
u 3-yeur facilities mMaintenance contract to provide
comprehensive muintenance services to the Tripoli
Medicul Centre. The fucility is a 1,200-bed
yovernment hospital locuted in Tripoli, Libya. Under
the contract, Hedlth Solutfions will provide a
computerised muintenance munugement system
and technical personnel to supervise and train



relevant hospitdl's operational staff, The Group
dims to use this undertuking us u reference project
to develop und secure more opportunities in the
North African region.

The Group recoynises that the Asian murket is
growiny und many hedlth institutions are
expunding their capacity. The Group is mindful of
the risks inherent in the growing economies und
shull contfinue to be cautious in its approuch,
constantly considering such risks in the expunsion
process. The Group is currently involved in the
tendering und development of severdl hedlthcare-
related projects around the region, in both the
public und the private sectors. With its proven und
ever-increusing expertise, und ussociution with
strateyic parthers, Hedlth Solutions expects to yrow
from strength to strength in existing markets us well
as establish itself in new markets.

Media Education and Entertainment

Educution und entertuinment is unother mainstay
of PSC’s business uctivities. Our subsidicry, InnoForm
Media Pte Ltd, is one of the region’s fustest-growing
VCD/DVD/CD distribution companies, with
operations in Singuapore, Malaysia, Hong Kong and
Taiwan. The compuny hus ucquired, developed
and produced humerous progrummes that are
educutionul and entertuining. InnoForm Medid is
continuously refreshing its programming slate to
keep up with the fimes.

Widely recoyhised us u provider of gudlity
programmes, InnoForm Mediu has distributed
severd| uccluimed movies like The Buhquet,
Confession of Pain and Affer This Our Exile on VCD
and DVD. Popular Koreun dramus like Princess
Hours and Sonhy of Prince und Tuiwunese dramaus

like Hanazakarino Kimitachihe have worked their
wuay to the heurts of the viewers. Recognising the
viewers’ growiny interest in locul productions,
InnoForm Mediu releused tele-movies, Sorry
Teucherin 2006 und Colour of Hope, in 2007.
Viewers cun look forward to more tele-movies from
InnoForm Media.

Since June 2006, InnoForm Media Pte Ltd has made
heudwuay info the entertainment and mediu
industry with production und distribution of its first
collection of Thui films, branded under the
‘Suwusdee’ collection. Its 2007 movie production,
Just Follow Law, which was directed and produced
by Jack Neo’s J Teum Productions, proved to be
d box office success with a box office of more
than $$2.5 million. Upcominyg movies in 2007 ure
comedy, Men Ih White, directed by award-winning
locul director, Kelvin Tong and action thriller,

Rule Number Ohe co-produced by InnoForm
Media, Media Development Authority of Singdpore
(MDA), Fortune Star Entertuinment (HK) Limited
and Boku Films.

InnoForm Media has dlso strengthened its foothold
in the children’s murket by launching InnoKidz in
December 2006. Under its belt are bestsellers like
Hi-5, Strawberry Shortcake und The Magic School
Bus. New progrummes like Pocoyo und Friends
have diso proven popular with children.

InnoForm Mediu continues to fuce u chullenging
climate in 2007. It will seek fo engage consumers
with a wider range of entertuinment programmes
from countries like Koreu, Tuiwun und Jupun. The
InnoForm Group will continue to explore hew
initiatives such as movie productions und bring in
more award-winhing media products to keep
viewers entertuined and informed.
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The Croup’s secondary business cluster - PSC Strategic
Investments - focuses on generating value and financial
asset capabilities by investing in promising enterprises.
These are companies in high growth sectors including

packaging and commodities trading.

Hangzhou Youcan E-distribution Network

PSC Investment Pte Ltd acquired a 20%
shareholding in Hangzhou Youcan E-Distribution
Network Company Limited, which is involved in
the distribution of fast moving consumer products
through various modes including phone and
web-based distribution services.

Tat Seng Group

One of Singapore’s leading manufacturers of
corrugated paper packaging products, Tat Seng
Packaging Group Ltd is listed on the mainboard
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. It designs, manufactures and sells
corrugated paper packaging products for a
diverse range of industries. Key products include
corrugated paper boards, corrugated paper
cartons, die-cut boxes, assembly cartons and
heavy-duty corrugated paper products.

Tat Seng’s clientele encompasses a wide range
of industries that include mulfi-national
corporations and local manufacturers. Industries
such as those in the electrical, electronics,

pharmaceutical, chemical and food sector as
well as plastic and metal stamping are all heavy
users of the Group'’s products. Tat Seng has three
plants, one in Singapore and the other ftwo in
Suzhou and Hefei, China.

Hefei Dansun officially became a subsidiary

of the Tat Seng Packaging Group Ltd. on

26 September 2006. Hefei Dansun was
incorporated in Hefei City, Anhui Province, China
in July 2003 as a corrugated paper carfon
manufacturing Company. It is strategically
located at the Hefei Economical Technical
Development Park.

Tat Seng has been a major player in the
corrugated box manufacturing industry for more
than 30 years. It will confinue fo look for business
opportunities to increase its production capacity
in areas where it operates. The company will also
form strategic alliances to expand its product
range and broaden market access.

Tat Seng will expand the value chain of PSC’s
core Consumer Essentials Division and extend its
reach in the growing China market.
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The Company is committed to complying with the Singapore Code of Corporate Governance 2005 ("Code”) so as to ensure greater
fransparency and to safeguard the interests of shareholders. This statement highlights the main corporate governance practices
that were in place during the financial year.

1 Board of Directors
Role of the Board
The Board of Directors currently comprises 3 Executive Directors, and 4 Non-Executive Directors. 3 of the Non-Executive Directors
are Independent Directors. Its primary role is fo protect and enhance long-term shareholder value. To fulfill this, the Board sets the
overall strategy and direction for the Group, establishes management’s goals and monitors the achievement of those goals,
supervises executive management, ensures that the Company has the necessary resources to meet its goals and establishes a
framework of prudent and effective controls to assess and manage risks.
Board Processes
The Board of Directors has established Board Committees such as the Audit Committee, Nominating Committee and the Remuneration
Committee to assist it in carrying out its responsibilities. These committees have written mandates and operating procedures which
are reviewed and monitored regularly. The minutes of the meeting of these committees are circulated among the Board.
During the year, the Board held 4 meetings to review the Group’s operations, conduct strategic review of the businesses and address
other specific significant matters that arose. The Company’s Arficles of Association provides for meetings of Directors by way of
telephone and video conferencing. The Board also approves transactions through circular resolutions which are circulated to the

Board together with all relevant information relating to the proposed transaction.

The agenda for meetings is prepared in consultation with the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. The Agenda and submissions
are circulated in advance of the scheduled meetings.

Directors’ meeting held in Financial Year 2006
The number of meetings attended by each member of the Board during the financial year is as follows:

Name of director Board meetings attended

Dr. Allan Yap

Mr. Foo Der Rong

Mr. Richard Lui Siu Tsuen

Dr. John Chen Seow Phun

Mr. Chee Teck Kwong Patrick

Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi

Mr. Tan Kong King (resigned on 5 February 2007)

Mr. Derek Cheong Kheng Beng (resigned on 5 February 2007)
Mr. Lien Kait Long

ADMNDMNOWDDMDMDMD
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1.1 Matters Requiring Board Approval

The directors have identified a few areas for which the Board has direct responsibility for decision making (which are embodied in
its infernal guidelines) such as the following:

e qapproval of the quarterly results announcements;

e approval of the annual report and accounts;

e declaration of inferim dividends and proposal of final dividends;
e convening of shareholders” meetings;

e approval of corporate strategy; and

e quthorisation of major fransactions.

1.2 Training of Directors

Our directors are provided with extensive background information about our Group’s history and business operations. The Company
also provides opportunities for ongoing education on Board processes and best practices as well as updates on relevant new laws
and regulations. Directors also have the opportunity to visit the Group’s operational facilities and meet with management to gain
a better understanding of the business operations. The Company is in the process of setting up a more formal procedure for the
issue of the appointment letter setting out the directors” duties and obligations and for the provision of relevant corporate information
to newly appointed directors.

1.3 Board Composition and Balance

The current Board comprises members with diverse expertise and experience in business and management, accounting, finance,
human resources and law.
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1.3 Board Composition and Balance (cont’d)

As af the date of this report, the Board comprises 7 suitably qualified members:

Directorships in

Past directorships
in other listed
companies and

Date of other listed other major
appointment/ companies and appointments over Academic
Date of last other major the preceding and professional
Name of Director re-election Functions appointments three years qualifications
Dr. Allan Yap 10 May 2002/ Executive Executive Chairman Vice Chairman and Honorary degree of
26 April 2006 Chairman of Intraco Limited Executive Director Doctor of Laws from
of Pacific Century University of Victoria
Executive Chairman Premium
of Tat Seng Packaging Developments
Group Ltd Limited (formerly
known as Dong Fang
Managing Director Gas Holdings Limited)
of Hanny Holdings
Limited Vice Chairman and
Director of China
Executive Director Strategic Holdings
of Wing On Travel Limited
(Holdings) Limited
Chairman, CEO
and Director of China
Enterprises Limited
Chairman, CEO
and Director of Burcon
NutraScience Corporation
Chairman and
Director of MRI
Holdings Limited
Mr. Foo Der Rong 1 September Managing Executive Director of Bachelor of Commerce
2002 Director & Intraco Limited from Nanyang University,
Chief
Executive Executive Director of
Officer Tat Seng Packaging
Group Ltd

Independent Director
of Sino Techfibre Limited
and China Farm
Singapore

Equipment Limited
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1.3 Board Composition and Balance (cont’d)

Directorships in

Past directorships
in other listed
companies and

Date of other listed other major
appointment/ companies and appointments over Academic
Date of last other major the preceding and professional
Name of Director re-election Functions appointments three years qualifications
Mr. Richard Lui 10 May 2002/ Executive Deputy Managing Alternate Director Member of The
Siu Tsuen 28 April 2005 Director Director of to Dr Allan Yap Chartered Institute
Hanny Holdings of China Strategic of Management
Limited Holdings Limited Accountants
Executive Director Master of Business
of Wing On Travel Administration from
(Holdings) Limited the University of Adelaide
Dr. John Chen 9 June 2003 / Non-Executive Non-Executive Director of PhD in Electrical
Seow Phun 28 April 2004 Director Chairman Intraco Limited Engineering from
of Matex the University of
Member International Waterloo, Canada
of Audit, Limited
Nominating
and Non-Executive
Remuneration Chairman
Committee of SNF

Corporation Ltd

Non-Executive
Deputy Chairman
of Tat Seng
Packaging

Group Ltd

Independent Director
of Thai Village Holdings
Ltd, OKP Holdings Ltd,
Hiap Seng Engineering
Ltd, Hongguo
International Holdings
Limited, and

PDC Corp Ltd
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1.3 Board Composition and Balance (cont’d)

Directorships in

Past directorships

in other listed

companies and

Date of other listed other major
appointment/ companies and appointments over Academic
Date of last other major the preceding and professional
Name of Director re-election Functions appointments three years qualifications
Mr. Chee Teck 1 August 1990/  Non-Executive/ Non-Executive Bachelor of Laws
Kwong Patrick 28 April 2004 Independent Chairman of CSC (Honours) from
Director Holdings Limited University of Singapore
Chairman of Independent Director
Audit Committee, of King’s Safetywear
Member of Limited, Richland
Nominating and  Group Limited,
Remuneration Tat Seng Packaging
Committee Group Ltd, Singapore
Windsor Holdings Ltd
and Hengxin
Technology Ltd
Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi 13 November Non-Executive/ Bachelor of Arts
1997/ Independent (Economics) from
26 April 2006 Director University of Newcastle
Chairman of Bachelor of Engineering
Remuneration (Mechanical) (Honours),
Committee and from University of
Member of Newcastle
Audit Committee
Mr. Lien Kait Long 1 June 2005/ Non-Executive/ Director of China Director of China Bachelor of
26 April 2006 Independent Enterprises Limited Strategic Holdings Commerce Degree
Director Limited and from Nanyang University,
Independent Director its subsidiaries Singapore

of Tat Seng Packaging
Group Ltd, 8Telecom
International Holdings
Co., Ltd, Jishan Holdings
Limited, Mediastream
Limited (under judicial
management), MRI
Holdings Limited,
Ocean International
Holdings Limited, Falcon
Energy Group Limited,
Youcan Foods
International Limited
and Delong Holdings
Limited

Director of China
Development
Corporation
Limited and

its subsidiaries

Fellow of CPA Australia
and Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

of Singapore
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1.3 Board Composition and Balance (cont’d)
The composition of the Board is determined in accordance with the following principles:

e the Board should comprise 8 to 10 directors. This number may be increased where it is felt that additional expertise is required in
specific areas, or when an outstanding candidate is identified;

o the Board should comprise at least one-third of non-executive independent directors;

e the Board should have enough directors to serve on various committees of the Board without over-burdening the directors or
making it difficult for them to fully discharge their responsibilities;

o the Board should comprise directors with a broad range of competencies and expertise both nationally and internationally; and

e directors appointed by the Board are subject to election by shareholders at the following Annual General Meeting ("AGM”)
and thereafter, directors are subject to re-election according to the provisions in the Articles of Association. The relevant Article
states that one third of the directors shall retire from office by rotation with the exception of the director holding office as
Managing Director.

The Board regularly examines ifs size and, with a view to determining the impact of its number upon effectiveness, decides on
what it considers an appropriate size for itself. The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis by the Nominating
Committee to ensure that the Board has the appropriate mix of expertise and experience. When a vacancy exists, through
whatever cause, or where it is considered that the Board would benefit from the services of a new director with particular skills
and knowledge, the Committee, in consultation with the Board, determines the selection criteria for the position based on the
skills and knowledge deemed necessary for the Board to best carry out its responsibilities. Candidates may be suggested by
directors or management or sourced from external sources. The Committee will interview the candidates and assess them
based on objective criteria approved by the Board such as integrity, independent mindedness, possession of the relevant skills
required or skills needed to complement the existing Board members, ability to commit the fime and effort to carry out his
responsibilities, good decision making track record, relevant experience and financial literacy. The Committee will make a
recommendation to the Board on the appointment. The Board then appoints the most suitable candidate who must stand for
election at the next AGM of shareholders.

Particulars of interests of directors who held office af the end of the financial year in shares and share opftions in the Company
and in related corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) are set out in the Directors’ Report.

1.4 Independent Members of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has 3 independent members, representing at least one-third of the Board: Mr. Chee Teck Kwong Patrick,
Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi and Mr. Lien Kait Long. The criteria for independence is based on the definition given in the Code. The Board
considers an independent director as one who has no relationship with the Company, its related companies or its officers that
could inferfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the director’s independent business judgement.
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1.5 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There is a distinct separation of responsibilities between the Executive Chairman and the CEO, which ensures that
there is a balance of power and authority at the top of the Company. These posts are held by Dr. Allan Yap and
Mr. Foo Der Rong respectively.

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Group to the CEO. The Chairman leads the Board and is responsible for
the effective working of the Board including facilitating contributions from the non-executive directors and encouraging
constructive relations between the directors as well as exercising control over the quality, quantity and timeliness of information
flow to the Board, ensuring effective communication with the Company’s shareholders and encouraging high standards of
corporafe governance.

1.6 Board Membership
In appointing directors, the Board considers the range of skills and experience required in the light of:

e geographical spread and diversity of the Group’s businesses;
o the strategic direction and progress of the Group;

e the current composition of the Board; and

o the need for independence.

The Board has delegated to the Nominating Committee ("NC”) the functions of developing and maintaining a fransparent and
formal process for the appointment of new directors, making recommendations for directors who are due for retirement by
rotation to seek re-election at general meeting and determining the independent status of each director.

The NC currently comprises 3 members, the majority of whom (including the Chairman) are independent - Mr. Lien Kait Long
(Chairman, and Independent Director), Mr. Chee Teck Kwong Patrick (Independent Director) and Dr. John Chen Seow Phun.
The NC Chairman is also a director who is not a substantial shareholder and is not directly associated with a substantial shareholder.

The NC's functions are to develop and maintain a transparent and formal process for the appointment of new directors, to
make recommendations on directors who are due for retirement by rotation to seek re-election at general meeting, and to
determine the status of independence of each director. The role of the NC includes overseeing the appointment and induction
process for directors. Where a director has multiple board representations, the NC will evaluate annually whether or not a director
is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as director of the Company based on internal guidelines such as
attendance, contactability and responsiveness.

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that, at each AGM, one-third of the directors for the fime being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not more than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. A retiring director
is eligible for re-election by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM, and prior to nominating a retiring director for re-
election, the NC will evaluate the director’s contribution and performance taking into consideration factors such as attendance,
preparedness, participation and candour.

Meetings and aftendance during the year:

Name of director Appointment Number of meetings attended
Mr. Lien Kait Long (Chairman) Non-Executive / Independent 1
Mr. Chee Teck Kwong Patrick Non-Executive / Independent 1

Dr. John Chen Seow Phun Non-Executive 1
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1.7

Board Performance

We believe that Bourd performance is ultimutely reflected in the performunce of the Group und the Compuny. The Bourd
should ensure compliunce with upplicuble laws und Bourd members should act in good fuith, with due diligence and care in
the best interests of the Group und the shareholders. In addition to these fiduciary duties, the Bourd is charged with two key
responsibilities of setting strateyic direction und ensuring that the Group is ubly led. The Bourd, through the delegution of its
authority to the NC, will review the Bourd’s composition annudlly fo enhsure that the Board has the dppropriate mix of expertise
und experience to leud the Group.

The NC, in considering the re-uppointment of uny director, evaludtes the performance of the director. The assessment parameters
include conftribution und performunce bused on fuctors such us uttendunce, prepuredness, participution und cundour.

The NC hus implemented a procedure of Bourd ussessment commencing from Financial Year 2004. The results of the Board
ussessment are discussed by the NC und sugyestions arising from the dssessment are circulated to the Board for consideration.
The NC hus ulso implemented u procedure to evuluate the contribution of euch individudl director to the effectiveness of the
Bourd commencing from Finuncial Year 2006. The Bourd ussessment is done by circuluting assessment forms to the directors
for their evaluution of various Bourd issues und processes such us the Bourd structure, conduct of Bourd meetings, review of
the Compuny’s corporute strategy und plunning, ensuring und reviewing the Compuny’s risk munagement und internal control
processes, review of the Compuny’s performance, review of the Bourd’s compensation evaludations and communication with
the Compuny’s shareholders. The result of the Bourd assessment is circulated to the Board, discussed at the Bourd meeting and
sugyestions by uny director or the NC are considered for further action. The individuadl directors” evaluations dre self assessments
curried out by euch director. The evuluutions are discussed by the NC und uny appropriate action tuken.

The financiul indicutors set out in the Code for the evuluution of directors are in our opinhion More of u medusure of mMunugement’s
performunce und hence, less upplicuble to directors. Moreover, the financial indicators provide snapshots of the Group’s
performunce and do hot reflect u complete medusure of long-term credtion of shareholders” wedlth.

Access to Information

Directors receive u reyular supply of informution from manugement ubout the Group so thut they ure equipped to play us full
a purt us possible in Bourd meetings. Detuiled Bourd pupers ure prepured for euch meeting of the Bourd and ure hormuailly
circuluted u week in advance of euch meeting. The Bourd pupers provided include background or explanatory information
reluting fo mutters to be brought before the Bourd. A presentution is made to the Directors ut the Director’s meeting on budyets
und forecusts und variunces from the budyet disclosed.

All directors have sepurute und independent uccess to the udvice und services of the compuny secretury. The compuny
secretury is responsible to the Bourd for ensuring that Bourd procedures ure followed und that applicable rules und regulations
are complied with us well as ensuring good information flow within the Board and its committees, between senior munugement
and the noh executive directors, facilitating orientation and ussisting with professional development as required. The appointment
and removul of the compuny secretury is a mutter which is upproved by the Bourd. The compuny secretary attended dll Bourd
meetings duriny the yeur,

The Bourd dlso hus sepuraute und independent uccess to the compuny’s sehior manugement.

Each director has the right, at the Compuny’s expense, to seek independent legal and other professional advice concerhing
any uspect of the Group'’s operautions or undertukings in order to fulfill their duties und responsibilities us directors.
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2 Remuneration Matters

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation puckuges ut market rates which reward successful performance
und atftract, retain und mMotivate directors and key munugement executives.

In 2006, the Remunerution Committee ("RC”) comprised solely of hon-executive directors, the mujority of whom, including the
Chdirmuan, is independent. The RC currently comprises 3 members — Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi (Chuairman, and Indejpendent Director),
Mr. Chee Teck Kwony Putrick (Independent Director) und Dr. John Chen Seow Phun.

The RC is responsible for recommendiny to the Bourd d framework of remuneration for the directors and the executive directors
(including the CEO) which is submitted to the whole Bourd for endorsement. The RC reviews und upjproves recommendutions
oh remunerution policies und puckuyes for directors in the interests of improved corporute performaunce.

The RC’s review of remuneration packages takes info consideration the long ferm interests of the Group and ensures that the
inferests of the directors dlign with that of the shareholders. The review covers dll uspects of remuneration, including but not
limited to directors’ salaries, fees, dllowances, bonuses, options, profit sharing und benefits-in-kind.

All hon-executive Directors ure puid u Director’s fee, with udditional fees for serving us the chuirmun or member of u Bourd
committee und uttendunce fees for Boaurd and Bourd committee meetinygs. These fees ure recommended by the RC and
submitted o the Bourd for endorsement. The Directors’ fees to be puid for any one yedr are submitted for shareholders’ approval
ut the Annuul Generdl Meeting.

The remunerution puckuyes of the CEO und the executive directors ure determined bused on the fraumework recommended
by the RC. In doinyg so, the RC reviews the length of the fixed uppointment period, the notice period for termination und the
terms of the compensution puckuyge in the event of the terminution of uny executive director’s contruct of service to ensure
that the terms of such clauses aure not onerous to the Compuny. The executive directors’ framework of remuneration includes
u fixed element us well us u variuble element in the form of u bonus und u profit sharing incentive which is linked to the
Compuny’s performunce.

With effect from Financial Yeur 2006, the RC dlso reviews the senior munugement’s remuneration unnudilly.
The Compuny has implemented the PSC Executives’ Share Option Scheme 2003 for the Company’s executives, including its
directors. Information on the Scheme is set out in the Director’s Report. The RC is responsible for reviewinyg, approving and

administering the Scheme.

Meetings und uttendunce during the yeur:

Name of director Appointment Number of meetings attended
Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi (Chairman) Non-Executive / Independent 1
Mr. Chee Teck Kwohy Putrick Non-Executive / Independent 1

Dr. John Chen Seow Phun Non-Executive 1
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2.1

Remuneration Matters (cont’d)

Summary compensation table of Company’s Directors receiving remuneration from the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2006:

Base Profit Director
Directors Salary Bonus Sharing Fees Allowance* TOTAL
Range $$250,000 and below
Mr. Richard Lui Siu Tsuen 49.74% 8.29% 31.61% 10.36% 0.00% 100%
Dr. John Chen Seow Phun 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 100%
Mr. Chee Teck Kwong Patrick 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 100%
Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 100%
Mr. Tan Kong King 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 100%
Mr. Derek Cheong Kheng Beng 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 100%
Mr. Lien Kait Long 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 100%
Range $$750,000 to below $1,000,000
Mr. Foo Der Rong 47.19% 7.87% 36.66% 5.74% 2.54% 100%
Range $$1,000,000 to below $1,250,000
Dr. Allan Yap 43.91% 7.32% 44.06% 2.41% 2.30% 100%

* Employer’s CPF contribution is included here.

Remuneration of Employees Related to Directors

As at 31 December 2006, we have an employee who is related to the CEO. He has been the Executive Director of a subsidiary
since 1996. The remuneration of this employee is determined by the Executive Chairman and an Executive Director. The CEO
abstains from all matters relating to the remuneration of this employee. The basis of determining the remuneration of this related
employee is the same as the basis of determining the remuneration of other unrelated employees.

Summary compensation fable of the executive who is related to the CEO for the financial year ended 31 December 2006:

Allowances
Profit Director and other
Remuneration Band Salary Bonus Sharing Fees benefits* TOTAL
Range $$500,000 and below 75.79% 12.63% 0.00% 5.48% 6.10% 100%

* Employer’s CPF contribution is included here.
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2.2 Remuneration of Top 5 Key Management Executives

Disclosure of the top 5 key management executives’ remuneration (who are not directors) in bands of $$250,000 (based on
gross remuneration received) is set out below:

Base Profit Director

Key Management Executives Salary Bonus Sharing Fees Allowance* TOTAL
Range $$500,000 and below

Chong Fah Shang 81.68% 13.81% 0.00% 0.00% 4.51% 100%
Tang Yick Chong 71.90% 16.04% 3.17% 3.13% 5.76% 100%
Teo Wai Leng, Lena 73.50% 15.92% 4.84% 0.00% 5.74% 100%
Range $$250,000 and below

Wong Juan Meng 74.33% 16.10% 3.97% 0.00% 5.60% 100%
Angela Chan Mui Chin 74.91% 16.23% 3.69% 0.00% 517% 100%

* Employer’s CPF contribution is included here.

The Company adopts a remuneration policy for staff comprising both a fixed and variable component. The fixed component
is in the form of a base salary and allowances. The variable component is in the form of a variable bonus that is linked o the
Company and each individual’s performance.

3 Accountability and Audit

In presenting the annual financial statements and quarterly announcements to shareholders as well as any price sensitive reports
to the public the Board aims to provide the shareholders with a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
and the Group’s performance, position and prospects.

The Board is provided with an analysis of the management accounts at the quarterly Board meetings which presents a balanced
and understandable assessment of the company’s performance, position and prospects.

3.1 Audit Committee

During 2006, the Audit Committee ("AC") had 4 members, all of whom are non-executive directors and the majority of whom,
including the Chairman, is independent. The AC’s members are Mr. Chee Teck Kwong Patrick (Chairman, and Independent
Director), Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi (Independent Director), Dr. John Chen Seow Phun and Mr. Lien Kait Long (Independent Director).
At least 2 members have accounting or related financial management expertise or experience.

The AC’s main objective is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities relating to internal controls,
overseeing the external audit process, reviewing the financial information to be disclosed to the public and ensuring that
arrangements are in place for the independent investigation and follow up of reports by staff of improprieties in financial reporting
and other matters.
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3.1

Audit Committee (cont’d)

Specifically, the AC meets periodically fo perform the following functions:
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review the audit plans of the external and internal auditors;

review the external and internal auditors’ reports;

review the co-operation given by the Company’s officers to the external and internal auditors;

review the adequacy of the infernal audit function;

evaluate the effectiveness of the Group'’s system of internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management, by reviewing written reports from internal and external auditors, and management responses and
actions to correct any deficiencies;

review the financial statements of the Company and the Group before their submission to the Board of Directors;

review non-audit services provided by the external auditors to satisfy itself that the nature and extent of such services will not
prejudice the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

nominate external auditors for appointment or re-appointment;

review the Group’s compliance with such functions and duties as may be required under the relevant statutes or the Listing
Manual, and by such amendments made thereto from time to time; and

review interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual) to ensure that they are on normal
commercial terms and arms’ length basis and not prejudicial to the interests of the Company or its shareholders in any way.

Apart from the duties listed above, the AC may commission and review the findings of internal investigations info matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity, or failure of internal controls or infringement of any Singapore and other applicable law,
rule or regulation which has or is likely fo have material impact on the Company’s or Group’s operating results and/or
financial position.

The AC meets from time fo time with the Group’s external and internal auditors and the executive management fo review
accounting, auditing and financial reporting matters so as to provide the necessary checks and balances to ensure that an
effective control environment is maintained in the Group. The AC also studies proposed changes in accounting policies, examines
the internal audit functions and discusses the accounting implications of major transactions. Furthermore, the AC advises the Board
regarding the adequacy of the Group's infernal controls and the contents and presentation of its interimm and annual reports. Based
on the information provided to the AC, nothing has come to the AC’s attention that the system of internal controls and risk
management is inadequate.
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3.1 Audit Committee (cont’d)

The AC is also authorised to investigate any matter within ifs ferms of reference and has full access fo and co-operation of the
management and full discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings, and reasonable resources to
enable it fo discharge its functions properly. The AC meets annually with the infernal auditors and the external auditors, without
the presence of the Company’s management to review the adequacy of audit arrangements, with particular emphasis on the
scope and quality of their audits, and the independence and objectivity of the internal and external auditors.

The AC, having reviewed all non-audit services provided by the external auditors o the Group, is satisfied that the nature and
extent of such services would not affect the independence of the external auditors.

Meetings and attendance during the year:

Name of director Appointment Number of meetings attended
Mr. Chee Teck Kwong Patrick (Chairman) Non-executive / Independent 4
Mr. Tao Yeoh Chi Non-executive / Independent 3
Dr. John Chen Seow Phun Non-executive 4
Mr. Lien Kait Long Non-executive / Independent 4

3.2 Internal Controls

The Board of Directors recognises that it is responsible for the overall internal control framework, but accepts that no cost effective
internal control system will preclude all errors and irregularities, as the system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The AC will:

e safisfy itself that adequate measures are in place to identify and mitigate any material business risks associated with the Group;
e ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls, including financial, operating and
compliance controls and risk management, is conducted at least annually. Such review can be carried out by infernal auditors/

external auditors;

e ensure that the infernal control recommendations made by infernal and external auditors have been implemented by the
management; and

e ensure the Board is in a position to comment on the adequacy of the internal controls of the Group.
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Internal Audit

The Group has an in-house infernal audit function that is independent of the activities it audits. The aim of the internal audit
function is fo promote internal control in the Group and to monitor the performance and effective application of infernal audit
procedures. It supports the directors in assessing key internal controls through a structured review programme. The internal audit
function is expected to meet or exceed the standard set by internationally recognised professional bodies including the Standards
for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set by The Institute of Internal Auditors.

The intfernal audit function reports functionally to the Chairman of the AC and administratively to the CEO. The AC ensures that
the internal audit function has adequate resources and has appropriate standing within the Group. The AC, on an annual basis,

assesses the effectiveness of the internal auditors by examining:

e the scope of the internal auditors’ work;

the quality of the reports;
¢ the relationship with the external auditors; and

o the independence of the areas reviewed.

Communication with our Shareholders

The Company firmly believes in high standards of transparent corporate disclosure, pursuant to the SGX-ST’s Listing Rules and

the Singapore Companies Act, whereby shareholders are informed of all major developments that affect the Group. Information

is communicated to our shareholders on a fimely basis. Where there is inadvertent disclosure made to a selected group, the

Company will make the same disclosure publicly fo all others as soon as practicable. Communication is made through:

e annual reports that are prepared and sent fo all shareholders. The Board ensures that the annual report includes all relevant
information about the Company and the Group, including future developments and other disclosures required by the
Singapore Companies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards;

e quarterly announcements confaining a summary of the financial information and affairs of the Group for that period

e notices of and explanatory memoranda for AGMs and Extraordinary General Meetings;

e press releases on major developments of the Company and the Group;

e disclosure to the SGX-ST; and

e the Company’s website at http://www.psc.com.sg at which our shareholders can access information on the Group.
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4 Communication with our Shareholders (cont’d)

Moreover, our shareholders are encouraged to aftend the AGM to ensure a high level of accountability and to be updated
on the Company’s strategies and goals. The Company’s Arficles allow a shareholder to appoint more than 2 proxies to attend
a shareholder’s meeting on his behalf. The notice of the AGM is sent to our shareholders, together with explanatory notes,
appendices or a circular on items of special business, at least 14 days before the meeting. The Chairmen of the AC, NC and
RC are normally present and available to address questions relating to the work of their respective committees at general
meetings. Furthermore, the external auditors are present to assist our Board of Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
our shareholders.

Each item of special business included in the notice of the meeting is accompanied, where appropriate, by an explanation
for the proposed resolution. Separate resolutions are proposed for substantially separate issues at the meeting.

5  Dedlings in Securities
In accordance with Rule 1207(18) of the Listing Manual issued by SGX-ST, the Company notifies all employees that they are
prohibited from trading in the Company’s shares one month prior to the announcement of the Company’s half and full year

results and 14 days before the announcement of the first quarter and third quarter financial results.

The Company has also issued a policy on Insider Trading to all employees which sets out the principles of relevant laws relafing
to insider frading which are applicable at all times.
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We are pleased to submit this annual report to the members of the Company together with the audited financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2006.

Directors
The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Allan Yap

Foo Der Rong

Richard Lui Siu Tsuen
Chee Teck Kwong Patrick
Tao Yeoh Chi

John Chen Seow Phun
Lien Kait Long

Directors’ Interests

According fo the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the Act), particulars
of interests of directors who held office at the end of the financial year (including those held by their spouses and infant children) in
shares and share options in the Company and in related corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) are as follows:

Holdings at Holdings
beginning at end
of the year of the year
Name of director and corporation in which interests are held
Allan Yap
PSC Corporation Ltd
- options to subscribe for ordinary shares at $0.086 between 20/08/04 and 19/08/13 5,000,000 5,000,000
Foo Der Rong
PSC Corporation Ltd
- ordinary shares (par value of $0.05 each atf beginning of the year) 2,922,500 2,922,500
- options to subscribe for ordinary shares at $0.086 between 20/08/04 and 19/08/13 4,000,000 4,000,000
Richard Lui Siu Tsuen
PSC Corporation Ltd
- options to subscribe for ordinary shares at $0.086 between 20/08/04 and 19/08/13 2,000,000 2,000,000

Chee Teck Kwong Patrick
PSC Corporation Ltd
- options to subscribe for ordinary shares at $0.085 between 20/08/04 and 19/08/08 1,000,000 1,000,000
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Holdings at Holdings
beginning at end
of the year of the year

Name of director and corporation in which interests are held (cont’d)

Tao Yeoh Chi

PSC Corporation Ltd

- options to subscribe for ordinary shares at $0.085 between 20/08/04 and 19/08/08 1,000,000 1,000,000

John Chen Seow Phun

PSC Corporation Ltd

- options to subscribe for ordinary shares at $0.085 between 20/08/04 and 19/08/08 2,000,000 2,000,000

Except as disclosed in this report, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares or share options of
the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning or at the end of the financial year.

There were no changes in any of the above mentioned interests in the Company between the end of the financial year and 21
January 2007.

Except as disclosed under the “Share options” section of this report, neither at the end of, nor at any time during the financial year, was
the Company a party fo any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company fo
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body corporate.

Except for salaries, bonuses and fees and those benefits that are disclosed in this report and in note 35 to the financial statements, since
the end of the last financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive, a benefit by reason of a confract made by
the Company or a related corporation with the director, or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a
substantial financial interest.

Share Options

The PSC Executives’ Share option Scheme (the Scheme) of the Company was approved and adopted by its members at an Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 8 July 2003. The Scheme is administered by the Company’s Remuneration Committee, comprising three
directors, Tao Yeoh Chi (Chairman), Chee Teck Kwong Patrick and John Chen Seow Phun.

Other information regarding the Scheme is set out below:
e The maximum number of shares issued or to be issued for options under the Scheme is 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.

e Options may be granfed at the average of the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (SGX-ST) for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant (*“Market Price”) or at a price of up to 20% discount
of the Market Price.

e Under the Scheme, a non-discounted option vests 1 year after the date of grant and a discounted option vests 2 years after the
date of grant.

e Unless they are cancelled or lapsed prior to the expiry date, options granted will expire 120 months affer the date of grant, except
for options granted to non-executive directors which will expire 60 months after the date of grant.
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Share Options (cont’d)

At the end of the financial year, details of the options granted under the Scheme on the unissued ordinary shares of the Company,
are as follows:

Date of Exercise Options Options Number of
grant of price outstanding Options Options outstanding option holders
options per share at 01/01/2006 cancelled exercised at31/12/2006 at 31/12/2006 Exercise period
20/08/2003 $0.086 19,650,000 - - 19,650,000 23 20/08/2004 to 19/08/2013
20/08/2003 $0.085 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 3 20/08/2004 to 19/08/2008
23,650,000 = = 23,650,000

Except as disclosed above, there were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries under options granted by the Company
or ifs subsidiaries as at the end of the financial year.

Details of options granted fo directors of the Company under the Scheme are as follows:

Aggregate options Aggregate options
granted since exercised since
Options granted for commencement commencement Aggregate options
financial year ended of Scheme to of Scheme to outstanding as at

31 December 2006 31 December 2006 31 December 2006 31 December 2006
Name of director
Allan Yaop - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
Foo Der Rong - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Richard Lui Siu Tsuen - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Chee Teck Kwong Patrick - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Tao Yeoh Chi - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
John Chen Seow Phun - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Total = 15,000,000 = 15,000,000

Since the commencement of the Scheme, no participant under the Scheme has been granted 5% or more of the fotal options available
under the Scheme.

The options granted by the Company do not entitle the holders of the options, by virtue of such holding, to any rights to participate in
any share issue of any other company.
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Audit Committee
The members of the Audit Committee during the year and af the date of this report are:

e Chee Teck Kwong Patrick (Chairman), non-executive independent director
e Tao Yeoh Chi, non-executive independent director

e Lien Kait Long, non-executive independent director

e John Chen Seow Phun, non-executive director

The Audit Committee performs the functions specified in Section 201B of the Companies Act, the SGX Listing Manual and the Code of
Corporate Governance.

The Audit Committee has held 4 meetings since the last directors’ report. In performing its functions, the Audit Committee met with the
Company’s external and internal auditors to discuss the scope of their work, the results of their examination and evaluation of the
Company'’s internal accounting control system.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the following:

e assistance provided by the Company’s officers to the internal and external auditors;

e quarterly financial information and annual financial statements of the Group and the Company prior to their submission to the
directors of the Company for adoption; and

e inferested person fransactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the SGX Listing Manual).
The Audit Committee has full access to management and is given the resources required for it to discharge its functions. It has full
authority and the discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings. The Audit Committee also recommends
the appointment of the external auditors and reviews the level of audit and non-audit fees.
The Audit Committee is safisfied with the independence and objectivity of the external auditors and has recommended to the Board
of Directors that the auditors, KPMG, be nominated for re-appointment as auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

The auditors, KPMG, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Allan Yap
Director

Foo Der Rong
Director

12 March 2007
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In our opinion:

(@) the financial statements set out on pages 63 to 116 are drawn up so as to give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2006 and of the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the
year ended on that date in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards; and

() ot the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these financial statements for issue.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Allan Yap
Director

Foo Der Rong
Director

12 March 2007
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Members of the Company
PSC Corporation Ltd

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PSC Corporation Ltd (the Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group), which
comprise the balance sheets of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2006, the income statement, statement of changes
in equity and cash flow statement of the Group for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes, as set out on pages 63 fo 116.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the Act) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining infernal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Audifors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion:

(a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2006 and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the
year ended on that date; and

() the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiaries incorporated in
Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Singapore
12 March 2007
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Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 76,706,564 73,868,008 19,726,942 20,418,900
Subsidiaries 4 - - 46,218,055 45,198,055
Associates 5 48,223,638 45,691,947 27,163,530 27,163,530
Other financial assets 6 13,668,881 10,920,215 2,480,300 -
Other receivable 3,962,034 4,567,281 - -
Intangible assets 7 6,161,800 4,296,908 - -
Deferred tax assets 8 981,305 1,176,450 - -
149,704,222 140,520,809 95,688,827 92,780,485
Current assets
Other financial assets 6 - 4,713,512 - 4,713,512
Non-financial assets 9 353,123 395,176 45,000 45,000
Property held for development 10 585,667 594,327 - -
Inventories 11 29,504,950 35,435,367 6,803,598 9,923,878
Trade and other receivables 13 60,088,179 63,235,907 41,124,518 54,319,043
Cash and cash equivalents 17 49,306,658 36,470,592 27,502,284 18,188,639
139,838,577 140,844,881 75,475,400 87,189,972
Total assets 289,542,799 281,365,690 171,064,227 179,970,457
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital 18 140,792,609 93,372,791 140,792,609 93,372,791
Reserves 20 53,666,234 98,910,704 6,929 967 56,667,679
194,458,843 192,283,495 147,722,576 150,040,470
Minority interests 23,268,025 21,316,922 - -
Total equity 217,726,868 213,600,417 147,722,576 150,040,470
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 21 3,099,595 1,623,611 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 8 5,890,427 5,389,460 375,134 336,783
8,990,022 7,013,071 375,134 336,783
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 41,536,665 49,951,033 22,637,014 28,781,965
Financial liabilities 21 18,713,224 8,447,293 - -
Current fax payable 2,576,020 2,353,876 329,503 811,239
62,825,909 60,752,202 22,966,517 29,593,204
Total liabilities 71,815,931 67,765,273 23,341,651 29,929,987
Total equity and liabilities 289,542,799 281,365,690 171,064,227 179,970,457

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 2006 2005
$ $

Continuing operations
Revenue 23 228,543,067 169,790,004
Cost of sales (175,126,016) (130,506,601)
Gross profit 53,417,051 39,283,403
Ofther operating income 1,946,762 11,100,133
Distribution expenses (25,093,156) (21,558,307)
Administrative expenses (23,501,051) (18,998,722)
Other operating expenses (1,214,180) (988.691)
Results from operating activities 5,655,426 8,837,816
Net finance income 24 1,420,550 220,309
Share of profit of associates (net of tax) 5,194,684 4,748,285
Profit before income tax 12,170,660 13.806.410
Income tax expense 25 (1,629,629) (1,769,012)
Profit from continuing operations 10,641,031 12,037,398
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations (net of tax) - (784,874)
Profit for the year 26 10,541,031 11,252,524
Aftributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 8,723,642 10,645,544
Minority interests 1,817,389 606,980
Profit for the year 10,541,031 11,252,524
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (cents) 27 0.47 0.57
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 27 0.47 0.57
Continuing operations
Basic earnings per share (cents) 27 0.47 0.61
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 27 0.47 0.61

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Year Ended 31 December 2006

Share
premium

Share
Note capital

Group

Other
capital
reserves

Fair value
reserve

Total
attributable
to equity
holders of
the Cognpany

Currency
translation  Accumulated
reserve profits

$ $

Total
equity
$

Minority
interests
$

At 1 January 93,347,791 47,141,654

2005

Issuance of

shares 18 25,000 18,000

2,735,066

861,328

103.439 41460596 185649864 5,889,283 191,539,147

43,000 - 43,000

Translation
differences
relating tfo
financial
statements of:

- subsidiaries - -
- associates - -

Reversal on
disposal of
available-for-
sale investments - -

Change in
fair value
of available-for-
sale quoted
equity securities - -

(107.698)

(951,670)

209,686 -
193477 -

209,686 61,535
193477 -

271221
193477

(107,698) - (107,698)

(951,670) - (951.670)

Net (losses)/gain
recognised
directly in
equity - -

Net profit for
the year - -

(1,059.368)

403,163 - (656,205) 61,535  (894,670)

- 10,645,544 10645544 606980 11,252,524

Total recognised
income and
expense for
the year - -

(1,059.368)

403,163 10,645,544 9989339 668515 10,657,854

Acquisition of
a subsidiary - -

Disposal of
subsidiaries - -

Dividend paid 28 - -

At 31 December

2005 93,372,791 47,159,654

2,735,056

(198,040)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

16,525,570 16,525,570

(1.905,143) - (1.905,143) (1,729,006) (3.634,149)

- (1,493,565) (1493565  (37440) (1,531,005

(1.398,541) 50,612,575 192283495 21316922 213,600417
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Year Ended 31 December 2006

Other
capital
reserves

Share
premium

Share
capital

Fair value
Note reserve

Group

Currency

translation Accumulated  holders of
the Company
$

reserve

profits
$

Total
atiibutable
to equity
Minority
inte;ests

Total
equity
$

At 1 January 93,372,791

2006

47,189,654 2735056  (198,040)

(1.398.541) 50,612,575

1902,283495 21316922

213,600417

Translation
differences
relating to
financial
statements of:

- subsidiaries - - - -

- associafes - - - -

Change in fair
value of available
-for-sale quoted
equity securities - -

(1.430,300)

(1.341477)
(788,588)

A.341477)
(788,588)

(495,895)

(1,430,300 (69.142)

(1,837,372)
(788,588)

(1.499,442)

Net gains recognised
directly in equity - -

(1.430,300)

Net profit
for the year - - - -

(2,130,065)

8,723,642

(3.560,365)  (565,037)

8723642  1817.389

(4.125,402)

10,541,031

Total recognised
income and
expense for

the year - - - (1,430,300)

(2,130,065)

8,723,642

5163277 1,252,352

6.415,629

Transfer of share
premium account
and capital
redemption reserve
arising from
implementation of
the Companies
(Amendment)

Act 2005 47419818

(47,159,654)  (260,164) -

Transfer from
accumulated
profits to

general reserve - - 180,349 -

Acquisition of
a subsidiary - - - -

Dividend paid 28 - - - R

At 31 December

2006 140,792,609 - 2625241 (1,628,340)

The accompanying notes form an intfegral part of these financial statements.

(150.349)

(2,987 .929)

(3.628606) 56,197,939

- 736,191
(2.987.929) (37 440)

736,191
(3.025,369)

104,458,843 23268025 217,726,868
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Note 2006 2005
$ $

Operating activities
Profit for the year 10,541,031 11,252,524
Adjustments for:

Bad debts written off 83,780 103,136

Depreciation 3 6,734,778 3,899,375
Amortisation of intfangible assets 7 1,591,067 1,299,229
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (48.021)
Impairment loss:

- non-financial assets 42,053 -

- investment in an associate - 203,240
Income tax expense 1,629,629 1,769,012
Inventories written off 17,429 44,368
Deferred expenditure written off 319,075 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,811 44,931
Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax - 618,014
Negative goodwill arising from acquisition of a subsidiary - (7.920,177)
Net finance income 24 (1,420,550) (220,309)
Property, plant and equipment impaired and written off 675,585 685,340
Share of profit of associates, net of tax (56.194,684) (4,748,285)

15,026,004 6,982,377

Changes in working capital:
Inventories 6,945,653 (56.725,716)
Trade and other receivables 2,061,744 (1,020,895)
Trade and other payables (11,524,675) 11,312,662
Cash generated from operations 12,508,726 11,548,428
Income taxes paid (1,355,789) (1,324,376)
Cash flows from operating activities 11,162,937 10,224,052

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 2006 2005
$ $

Investing activities
Disposal of subsidiaries and discontinued operations,

net of cash disposed of 29 - (661,625)
Dividends received 1.999.956 280,204
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired 31 (1,635,907) (13,776,843)
Interest received 1,308,720 1,206,617
Investment in associate (1,205,625) -
Deferred proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary 883,500 -
Proceeds from sale of:

- associate 588,813 -

- property, plant and equipment 289,347 1,892,132

- quoted equity securities 706,645 1,372,416

- quoted debt securities - 1,995,620

- unquoted debt securities 4,172,800 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,425,630) (11,964,096)
Purchase of quoted equity securities (4,152,095) (3.595)
Purchase of unquoted debt securities - (4,204,620)
Cash flows from investing activities (1,469.,476) (23,863,790)
Financing activities
Deposits pledged 748,840 (4,450,843)
Dividends paid (2,987,929) (1,493,565)
Interest paid (392,300) (120,509)
Payment of finance lease liabilities (39.969) (119.717)
Proceeds from borrowings 6,788,784 2,379,790
Proceeds from issue of shares, net of issue expense - 43,000
Repayment of borrowings (414,337) 457,614)
Trust receipts (154,557) (867,482)
Cash flows from financing activities 3,548,532 (5,086,940)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13,231,993 (18,726,678)
Cash and cash equivalents af beginning of year 30,964,675 49,649,937
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (70,619) 41,416
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 44,126,049 30,964,675

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2007.

1

2.1

Domicile and activities

PSC Corporation Ltd (the Company) is incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and has its registered office at 348 Jalan Boon
Lay, Singapore 619529,

The principal activities of the Company are those relating to the supply of provisions and household consumer products. The
Company also provides management services to ifs subsidiaries. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 4 fo

the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group) and the
Group's interests in associates.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS).

The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars which is the Company’s functional currency. They have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain property, plant and equipment, financial assets and financial liabilities which are
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are described in the following notes:

e Note 7 — assumptions of recoverable amounts relating to goodwill impairment
e Note 13 and 32 - allowance for doubtful receivables
e Note 32 - valuation of financial instruments

e Note 34 - measurement of contingent liabilities
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The Group has not applied the following accounting standards and interpretations that have been issued as of the balance sheet
date but are not yet effective:

FRS 40 Investment Property

- FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and the Amendment to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Capital Disclosures
- INT FRS 107 Applying the Restatement Approach under FRS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

- INT FRS 108 Scope of FRS 102 Share-based Payment

- INT FRS 109 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

- INT FRS 110 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

FRS 107 and amended FRS 1, which becomes mandatory for the Group’s 2007 financial statements, will require additional disclosures
with respect to the Group’s financial instruments and share capital. This standard does not have any impact on the recognition

and measurement of the Group’s financial statements.

The initial application of these standards and interpretations are not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s financial
statements. The entity has not considered the impact of accounting standards issued after the balance sheet date.

2.2 Consolidation
Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for under the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of
the assets given, equity instfruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly atfributable

to the acquisition.

The excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is credited to the income statement in the period of the acquisition.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable
are taken intfo account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Consolidation (cont'd)
Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over their financial and operating policies.
Associates are accounted for using the equity method. The consolidated financial statements include the Group'’s share of the
income and expenses of associates, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date
that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. When the Group’s share of losses exceeds
its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that inferest (including any long-term investments) is reduced o zero and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf
of the associate.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances, and any unreadlised income or expenses arising from infra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unreadlised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted associates are eliminated
against the investment fo the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as
unredlised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Accounting for subsidiaries and associates by the Company

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at the exchange rate at

the date of the tfransaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retransiated

to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at fair value are refranslated o the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date on which

the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in the income statement, except for differences arising on

the refranslation of monetary items that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation (see below)
and available-for-sale equity instruments (see note 2.7).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
2.3 Foreign currencies (cont’d)
Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to Singapore dollars at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting
date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are franslated to Singapore dollars at exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the fransactions. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005
are freated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in the currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part
or in full, the relevant amount in the currency franslation reserve is transferred to the income statement.

Net investment in a foreign operation

Exchange differences arising from monetary items that in substance form part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised in the Company’s income statement. Such exchange differences are reclassified to equity in the
consolidated financial statements. When the net investment is disposed of, the cumulative amount in equity is transferred to the
income statement as an adjustment to the profit or loss arising on disposal.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes
the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its
intended use, and the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased
soffware that is infegral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the income statement as incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment is recognised in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives (or lease term, if shorter) of each part of an item of property, plant
and equipment.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold buildings Remaining lease periods
Freehold buildings 50 years

Leasehold improvements Remaining lease periods
Renovations 3 to 10 years

Furniture, fittings and office equipment 6to 10 years

Warehouse equipment 6to 10 years

Motor vehicles 4to 10 years

Plant and machinery 6to 10 years

Computers 3 to 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date.
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill and negative goodwill arise on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented in intangible assets. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of associates
is presented together with investments in associates.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment as described in note 2.10.
Negative goodwill is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Ofther intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

D) Trademarks

Trademarks are amortised and recognised in the income statement as an expense using a straight-line method over their useful
lives of 3 to 10 years.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
2.5 Intangible assets (cont'd)
i) Development costs

The development costs incurred in the development of video programmes, comprising the cost of materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of overheads, are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Development
costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 10 years. Amortisation commmences when the
video programmes are available for sale.

iii) Royalties and licences

Royalties and licences paid to third parties are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
of 2to 10 years.

2.6 Properties held for development

Properties held for development consists of land held for the purpose of development and future sale. Development properties
are stated at cost less impairment losses.

2.7 Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, financial liabilities, and tfrade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised inifially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit or loss,
any directly aftributable fransaction costs, except as described below. Subsequent to initial recognition, non-derivative financial
instruments are measured as described below.

A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
are derecognised if the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the Group fransfers the
financial asset to another party without retaining control or fransfers substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. Regular way
purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at frade date, ie, the date that the Group commits itself to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged
or cancelled.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposits. For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and which form an integral part of the
Group's cash management and exclude bank deposits held to secure bank facilities.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group’s investments in equity securities and debt securities are classified as available-for-sale financial assets. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than for impairment losses, and foreign exchange
gains and losses on available-for-sale monetary items (see note 2.3), are recognised directly in equity. When an investment is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is fransferred to the income statement.

Other

Other non-derivative financial insfruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying
amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted af the original effective interest rate. An impairment
loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its current fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed
collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

Allimpairment losses are recognised in the income statement. Any cumulative loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset
recognised previously in equity is fransferred to the income statement.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost and available-for-sale financial assets that are debt securities, the
reversal is recognised in the income statement. For available-for-sale financial assetfs that are equity securities, the reversal is
recognised directly in equity.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly atftributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity.
Where share capital recognised as equity is repurchased (tfreasury shares), the amount of the consideration paid, including directly

attributable costs, is presented as a deduction from equity. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, sold or cancelled, the
consideration received is recognised as a change in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
2.8 Non-financial assets

Transferable country club memberships are stated atf cost less impairment.
2.9 Leases

When entities within the Group are lessees of a finance lease

Leased assets in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon
initial recognition, property, plant and equipment acquired through finance leases are capitalised at the lower of its fair value
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives. Lease payments are apportioned between finance expense and reduction of the lease liability. The finance expense
is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term
of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.

When entities within the Group are lessees of an operating lease

Where the Group has the use of assefs under operating leases, payments made under the leases are recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement
as an integral part of the total lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged o the income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

2.10 Impairment - non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable
amounts are estimated. For goodwill, recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date, and as and when indicators of
impairment are identified.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other
assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement unless it reverses a previous revaluation, credited
to equity, in which case it is charged to equity. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of ifs value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.
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2.10

2.11

2.12

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Impairment - non-financial assets (cont’d)

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Trading goods

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and compirises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress,
cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Manufactured corrugated paper products

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials is determined on a specific identification
basis. In the case of work-in-progress and finished goods, cost includes raw materials, direct expenditure and an attributable portion

of manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary fo make
the sale.

Contract work-in-progress

Conftract work-in-progress represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be collected from customers for contract work
performed to date. It is measured at cost plus profit recognised to date less progress billings and recognised losses. Confract costs
comprise cost that relate directly fo the contracts, cost aftributable to the contract activity in general and that can be allocated

to the specific contract, and other cost chargeable to the customer within the terms of the contract.

Contract work-in-progress is presented as part of inventories in the balance sheet. If payments received from customers exceed
the income recognised, the difference is presented as deferred income in the balance sheet.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement
as incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
2.12 Employee benefits (cont’d)
Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided.

A provision is recognised for the amount expected o be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

2.13 Revenue recognition
Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and
allowances, frade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can
be estimated reliably, and there is no confinuing management involvement with the goods.

Construction contracts

As soon as the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and expenses are recognised
in the income statement in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. Contract revenue includes the initial amount
agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable that
they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably.

The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed. When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable. An expected loss on a contfract is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Healthcare consultancy
Revenue arising from healthcare consultancy is recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

2.14 Finance income and expense
Finance income comprises inferest income on fixed deposits, dividend income and gains on the disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets that are recognised in the income statement. Inferest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest

method. Dividend income is recognised on the date that the Group’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case
of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Finance income and expense (cont’d)

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings and impairment losses recognised on financial assets that are recognised
in the income statement. All borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method, except
to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly atftributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily fakes a substantial period of time to be prepared for its infended use or sale.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the income statement except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current fax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using fax rates enacted or substantively enacted ot
the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised
for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a fransaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries and associates to the extent that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced fo the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business that represents a separate maijor line of business or geographical
area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale, if earlier. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative income statement is restated as
if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

Intra-group financial guarantees

Where the Group enters into financial guarantee contracts fo guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its group,
the Group considers these o be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. The Group treats the guarantee contract
as a contfingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the Group will be required to make a payment under
the guarantee.
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Freehold Freehold Leasehold

buildings land buildings improvements
Group $ $
Cost
At 1 Junuary 2005 11,011,236 2,685,197 43,786,730 4,073,025
Additions 225,593 - 1,158,974 5,560,384
Disposdls - - (1,323,651) -
Assets acquired in business combinations 20,691,728 - - -
Disposul of subsidiuries - - (38,551,926) -
Write-offs - - - -
Translation differences on consolidution (154,456) 67,644 469 427 -
At 31 December 2005 31,774,101 2,752,841 5,539,554 9,633,409
Additions 2,644 - 228,146 51,785
Disposdls - - - -
Assets ucyuired in business combinations 4,871,450 - - -
Write-offs - - (8,756) -
Translation differences on consolidution (653,906) (44,404) (42,436) -

At 31 December 2006 35,994,289 2,708,437 5,716,508 9,685,194
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Furniture,
fittings
and office Warehouse Motor Plant and
Renmgoﬂons equi;.;ment equipment vehicles machinery Computers Total
3,684,220 3,622,024 1.889.457 6,564,769 13,564,984 3.198,210 94,079,852
2,549,602 434,252 243813 949,605 571,028 270,845 11,964,096
(319,047) (728,146) 2479 (1,216,186) (681,124) (80,124) (4,350,757)
- 1,514,050 180,843 1,085,966 42,097,476 561,860 66,131,923
(60,515) (15,009 - - (7.016,908) (14,052) (45,658.410)
(56,178) (65.268) (69.849) - (275.461) (29.928) (496,684)
5,680 31,890 2.374) 13,952 (135,133) 11,125 307.755
5,803,762 4,793,793 2239411 7.398,106 48,124,862 3.917.936 121.977.775
1,103,978 437,127 158,625 465,015 1,612,813 527,541 4,587,574
(22,145) (121,392) - (336,338) (93,936) (246 ,462) (820,273)
- 39.441 - 59,891 2417472 8473 7.396,727
(1.247,709) (845,713) (499,127) - (215,003) (1,824,092 (4,640,400)
©A473) (32,459 (5.862) (28.908) (995.079) (7.952) (1.816,479)

5632413 4,270,797 1,892,947 7,557,766 50,851,129 2375444 126,684.924
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3 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Leasehold Freehold Freehold Leasehold

buildings land buildings improvements
Group $ $
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2005 3,668,799 - 4,528,663 1,191,949
Depreciation charge for the year 471,882 - 21,942 181,383
Disposals - - (152,505) -
Impairment loss - 571211 - -
Assets acquired in business combinations - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries - - (1,571,939 -
Write-offs - - - -
Translation differences on consolidation 990 - 26,005 -
At 31 December 2005 4,141,671 571211 2,852,166 1,373,332
Depreciation charge for the year 1,087,184 - 21,243 263,010
Disposals - - - -
Write-offs - - - -
Translation differences on consolidation (15,646) (8,324) (3.225) -
At 31 December 2006 5213209 562,887 2,870,184 1,636,342
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2005 7342437 2,685,197 39,258,067 2,881,076
At 31 December 2005 27,632,430 2,181,630 2,687,388 8,260,077

At 31 December 2006 30,781,080 2,145,550 2,846,324 8,048,852




+
Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2006

PSC COPORATION LTD 8 3
ANNUAL REPORT 2006

Furniture,
fittings
and office Warehouse Motor Plant and
Renovations equipment equi;;menf vehicles machinery Computers Total

1,752,466 1,939,860 1,410,583 2,413,340 9,888,344 1,733,615 28,627,619

463,488 344,116 208,357 776,100 1,013,755 418,352 3,899,375
(86,034 (415,842) 1575 (1,062,833) (663,156) (31,748) (2413.693)

- - - - - - 571211

- 1.219,178 129,871 567426 21,670,222 409,637 23,896,334
(31,984 3.916) - - (4,439077) 11,067) (6,057,983)
(13,566) (19,704) (69,849 - (270,281) (9.564) (382,964)
2016 20,113 1,697) 2,655 12,073 7.713 69,868

2,086,386 3,083,805 1,675,690 2,696,688 27,111,880 2,516,938 48,109,767
557,380 422,689 115,129 893,020 2,922,138 452,985 6,734,778
(8.497) 41,373) - (196,766) (94,209) (183,270) (524,115)
(1,217,891 (832,005) (493,727) - (212,189) (1,209,003) (3.964,815)
(3.498) (20,674) 6.964) (10,926) (301,239) 6,759) (377,255)
1.413,880 2,612,442 1,290,128 3,382,016 29,426,381 1,570,891 49,978,360
1,931,754 1,682,164 478,874 4,151,429 3,676,640 1,464,595 65,552,233
3,717,376 1,709,988 563,721 4,701,418 21,012,982 1,400,998 73,868,008
4,218,533 1,658,355 602,819 4,175,750 21,424,748 804,553 76,706,564
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3 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Leasehold Leasehold
building improvements Renovations

Company
Cost
At 1 January 2005 8,500,000 4073,025 2,315,305
Additions 17.028 5,560,384 2,444,200
Disposals - - (78,637)
At 31 December 2005 8,517,028 9,633,409 4,680,868
Additions - 51,785 1,067,092
Disposals - - -
Write-offs - - (1,209.626)
At 31 December 2006 8,517,028 9,685,194 4,538,334
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2005 3.355,263 1,191,949 1,209,082
Depreciation charge for the year 224,185 181,383 247,002
Disposals - - (4,305)
At 31 December 2005 3.579.448 1.373.332 1.451,779
Depreciation charge for the year 224,435 263,010 395,997
Disposals - - -
Write-offs - - (1,179.808)
At 31 December 2006 3,803,883 1,636,342 667,968
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2005 5,144,737 2,881,076 1,106,223
At 31 December 2005 4,937,580 8,260,077 3,229,089

At 31 December 2006 4,713,145 8,048,852 3,870,366
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Furniture,
fittings Plant
and office Warehouse Motor and
equi%meni equipment vehicles machinery Computers Total
1447400 661,209 2,281,297 596,904 2,198,036 22,073,176
300,746 157,334 46,526 186,000 187,384 8,899,602
- - - (38,000 (1,280 7917
1,748,146 818,543 2,327,823 744,904 2,384,140 30,854,861
68,255 84,130 33272 - 362,310 1,666,844
(1,436) - - - (72573) (74,009)
(753,784) (499.127) - (128,703) (1,807,105) (4,398,345)
1,061,181 403,546 2,361,095 616,201 866,772 28,049,351
878,134 532414 515,990 457,392 1,054,976 9,195,200
91,734 33,974 230,068 34,622 240,850 1,283,818
- - - 37,999 (753) (43,057)
969,868 566,388 746,058 454,015 1,295,073 10,435,961
119,806 42,835 236,815 38,026 325,981 1,646,905
209 - - - (14,754) (14963)
(751,280) (493,727) - (128,700) (1,191,979 (3,745,494)
338,185 115,496 982,873 363,341 414,321 8,322,409
569,266 128,795 1,765,307 139,512 1,143,060 12,877.976
778,278 252,155 1,581,765 290,889 1,089,067 20,418,900

722996 288,050 1,378,222 252,860 452451 19,726,942
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Included in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of the Group are assets with carrying amount of $514,918 (2005:
$588,345), which are acquired under finance lease.

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of $4,587,5674 (2005: $11,964,096), of
which $161,944 (2005: $Nil) was acquired under finance leases. Cash payments of $4,425,630 (2005: $11,964,096) were made to
purchase the property, plant and equipment.

The following property, plant and equipment are pledged as security o secured bank loans:

Bhd. and its subsidiaries:

household and consumer
products

Group
2006 2005
$ $
Leasehold buildings 17,439,380 13,785,932
Plant and machinery 2,213,000 -
4  Subsidiaries
Company
2006 2005
$ $
Equity investments af cost 47,818,055 47,818,055
Impairment losses (1,600,000) (2,620,000)
46,218,055 45,198,055
Details of significant subsidiaries are as follows:
Effective equity
Country of held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Principal activities incorporation 2006 2005
% %
@ Topseller Pte Ltd Marketing and sale of Singapore 100 100
agency lines and
proprietary brands
@ Econ Minimart Services Dormant Singapore 100 100
Pte Ltd
@ Tipex Trading Pte Ltd Supply of provisions and Singapore 74 74
and its subsidiaries: household products
@ Tips Trading Pte Ltd Supply of shelving Singapore 74 74
A Tips Industry (M) Packaging and sale of Malaysia 74 74
Sdn. Bhd. paper products
A Beautex Marketing (M) Dormant Malaysia 74 74
Sdn. Bhd.
A Socma Trading (M) Sdn. Marketing and sale of Malaysia 100 100
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4 Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Effective equity
Country of held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Principal activities incorporation 2006 2005
% %
A Econfood Manufacturing Dormant Malaysia 100 100
(M) Sdn. Bhd.
A Fresh Fruit Juice Manufacture of grass Malaysia 100 100
Manufacturing (M) jelly products
Sdn. Bhd.
@  PSC Investment Pte Ltd Investment holding Singapore 100 100
@  Forfune Food Manufacturing Manufacture of soya bean Singapore 100 100
Pte Ltd and its subsidiary: products and noodles
@ Fortune Food Marketing Sale of soya bean Singapore 100 100
Pte Ltd products and noodles
@  PSC Resort Pte Ltd Investment holding Singapore 100 100
and its subsidiary:
Y Palm Meadow Sdn. Bhd. Property investment Malaysia 100 100
«  Tat Seng Packaging Group Manufacture and sale of Singapore 64 64
Ltd and its subsidiaries: corrugated boards,
corrugated cartons and
other packaging products
# Tat Seng Packaging Manufacture and sale of People’s 64 64
(Suzhou) Co Ltd corrugated boards, Republic of China
corrugated cartons and
other packaging products
o Hefei Dansun Packaging Manufacture and sale of People’s 51.2 -
Co Ltd corrugated boards, Republic of China
corrugated cartons and
other packaging products
@  Topseller Development Pte Investment holding Singapore 100 100
Ltd and its subsidiary:
A Flobina Sdn. Bhd. Property investment Malaysia 100 100
@  PSC International Pte Ltd Investment holding Singapore 100 100
and its subsidiaries:
@ Health Solutions Investment holding Singapore 95 95
Infernational Pte. Ltd.
and ifs subsidiaries:
Q Health Solutions Construction of hospital Malaysia 95 95

(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
and its subsidiaries:

turnkey projects and
provision of health care
consultancy and hospital
management services
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4 Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Management Pte. Ltd.

Effective equity
Country of held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Principal activities incorporation 2006 2005
% %
Health Solutions Provision of healthcare Vietham 95 95
Medical Services consultancy and healthcare
(Vietnam) Co., Ltd and medical services
PT Health Solutions Provision of health Indonesia 95 -
Indonesia consultancy services
Education Solutions Investment holding Singapore 100 100
International Pte. Ltd.
and its subsidiaries:
InnoForm Media Pte Ltd Publisher, licensee, Singapore 51 51
and its subsidiaries: importer, exporter and
distribution of compact
discs, tapes and records
of all kinds
InnoForm Media (HK) Publisher, licensee, Hong Kong 51 51
Limited importer, exporter and
distribution of compact
discs, tapes and records
of all kinds
InnoForm Media Importer, exporter and Taiwan 40.8 40.8
(Taiwan) Co. distribution of compact
Limited discs, fapes and records
of all kinds
InnoForm Media (M) Production and Malaysia 51 51
Sdn. Bhd. distribution of tapes and
compact discs
InnoForm Entertainment Collection agent for Singapore 51 51
Pte. Ltd. royalties and digital
entfertainment online platform
[-Econ Management Franchise ownership Singapore 100 100
Services Pte. Ltd.
and its subsidiary:
I-View Media Pte. Ltd. Dormant Singapore 100 100
I-Meat Pte. Ltd. Dormant Singapore 100 100
PSC Supply Chain Investment holding Singapore 100 100
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4 Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Audited by KPMG Singapore.

Audited by Ernst & Young, Singapore.

Audited by other member firms of KPMG International.

Audited by Ernst & Young, People’s Republic of China.

Audited by Hefei Anhui Zhongan Certified Public Accountants, People’s Republic of China.
Audited by Deloitte & Touche, Malaysia.

Audited by Goh Joon Hai & Co., Malaysia.

Audited by Grant Thornton, Vietham.

Audited by Grant Thornton, Indonesia.

Audited by Keith Lam & Co., Hong Kong.

= =200 % >80

5 Associates

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $
Investment in associates 48,223,638 45,691,947 27.163,5630 27,163,530

Investment in associates at 31 December 2006 include goodwill of $1,032,462 (2005: $897,000).
Details of significant associates are as follows:

-- Effective equity held by --

Country of the Group the Company
Name of associate Principal activities incorporation 2006 2005 2006 2005
% % % %
& Health Solutions ) Provision of health Australia 46.5 46.5 - -
(Australia) Pty Ltd ) care consultancy
) and hospital
) management
) services
~ Health Solutions ) Australia 44.5 38.9 - -
(WA) Pty Ltd )
Q Health Solutions Construction of Malaysia 28.5 28.5 - -
(S.E. Asia) Sdn. hospital tfurnkey
Bhd. projects and

provision of health
care consultancy

and hospital
management services
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5 Associates (cont'd)

-- Effective equity held by --

Country of the Group the Company
Name of associate Principal activities incorporation 2006 2005 2006 2005
% % % %
o HSI Philippines Inc. Advisory and Philippines 38 38 - -
management services
to hospitals,
healthcare facilities
and medical
establishments
Vv Harbin Puwei Real Development of People's 40 40 - -
Estate Development property Republic of China
Co Ltd
A Hainan Groupforce Manufacture and People's 22 - - -
Laboratories Co Ltd export of green tea Republic of China
extract
+ Longkou Luzhibei Manufacture and People's 40 40 - -
Preserved Fruit distribution of Republic of China
Company Limited preserved fruits
# Sanya Fu Dao Dormant People's - 40 - -
Tourism Co Ltd Republic of China
+ Topseller Chemical Supply of washing People's 40 40 - -
(China) Company powder and Republic of China
Limited detergents
o Youcan E-Distribution Distribution, wholesale People's 20 - - -
Network Co Ltd and retail of fast moving Republic of China
consumer products
(food and non-food)
** Infraco Limited Engineering and Singapore 29.9 29.9 29.9 29.9
projects packaging,
trading of food and
food processing,
systems integrator,
specialised distributor of
telecommunication,
data communication
and semiconductor
products, and
commodities frading
£ China Worldbest Consulting, contract People’s 31.3 31.3 31.3 31.3

Health Solutions
Holding Co Ltd

management,
and supplies and
hospital ownership
and operation

Republic of China
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5 Associates (cont’d)

Q

Not required to be audited by law of country of incorporation.

Audited by Ernst & Young, Australia.

Audited by Deloitte & Touche, Malaysia.

Audited by Jaime B Santos & Associates, Philippines.

Audited by Harbin Public Accountant Office, People’s Republic of China.
Audited by Hainan Haizheng Accounting firm, People’s Republic of China.
Audited by Yantai Yiji Accounting firm, People’s Republic of China.
Audited by Sanya Tianya CPA Office, People’s Republic of China.

Audited by Hangzhou Dai Accounting firm, People’s Republic of China.
Audited by KPMG Singapore.

Audited by Zhong Xing Cai Certified Public Accountants Co Ltd., People’s Republic of China.

1O % 4+ D> <2 0

oo

The summarised financial information of the associates is as follows:

Associates
2006 2005
$ $

Assets and liabilities

Total assets 280,129,426 222,337,327
Total liabilities 124,341,772 77,774,156
Results

Revenue 555,562,054 480,355,998
Profit after taxation 20,905,774 17.261,557

The summarised financial information relating to associates is not adjusted for the percentage of ownership held by the Group.
The Group has not recognised losses relating fo certain associates where the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amount

of its investment in those associates. The Group’s share of cumulative unrecognised losses is $1,726,403 (2005: $1,842,878), of which
$10,619 (2005: $177,173) s its share of the current year’s losses. The Group has no obligation in respect of these losses.

6 Ofther financial assets

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $

Non-current investments

Available-for-sale equity securities 13,668,881 10,920,215 2,480,300 -
Current investments

Available-for-sale debt securities - 4,198,675 - 4,198,675
Available-for-sale equity securities - 514,837 - 514,837

= 4,713,512 = 4,713,512
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Year Ended 31 December 2006

Intangible assets
Goodwill on Development
consolidation  Trademarks costs Royalties Licences Total

Group $ $ $ $ $ $
Cost
At 1 January 2005 1,248,287 363,050 633,353 985,090 2,242,418 5,472,198
Disposal of subsidiary (139.,597) - - - - (139.597)
Additions - - 338,955 177,206 1,947,787 2,463,948
Translation differences - - 60 961 18,977 19,998
At 31 December 2005 1,108,690 363,050 972,368 1,163,257 4,209,182 7,816,547
Additions 608,447 - 647,127 58,125 2,208,985 3,522,684
Translation differences (9.900) - (13,055) (1.853) (131,414) (156,222)
At 31 December 2006 1,707,237 363,050 1,606,440 1,219,529 6,286,753 11,183,009
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2005 15,123 363,050 249,932 611,530 987,453 2,227,088
Disposal of subsidiary (15,123) - - - - (15,123)
Amortisation charge for

the year - - 231,705 251,849 815,675 1.299.229
Translation differences - - (286) 442 8,289 8.445
At 31 December 2005 - 363,050 481,351 863,821 1.811.417 3,519,639
Amortisation charge for

the year - - 206,837 137.626 1,246,604 1,591,067
Translation differences - - (5.968) (1.854) (81,675) (89.497)
At 31 December 2006 - 363,050 682,220 999,593 2,976,346 5,021,209
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2005 1,233,164 - 383.421 373.560 1,254,965 3,245,110
At 31 December 2005 1,108,690 - 491,017 299,436 2,397,765 4,296,908
At 31 December 2006 1,707,237 - 924,220 219,936 3,310,407 6,161,800

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

Goodwill is primarily allocated to the cash-generating units within the media and packaging business segments operating largely
in Singapore and China respectively.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is based on value-in-use. These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the Group’s management covering a three-year period for the media segment and a five-
year period for the packaging business. The key assumptions used are as follow:

Gross margin Growth rate Discount rate
% % %
2006
Media 62 3 7
Packaging 10 10 10
2005
Media 60 3 5

Management determined the key assumptions based on past performance and its expectations of market developments, and
the specific risks relating to the segments.
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8 Deferred taxation

Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior fo offsetting of balances) during the year are as follows:

Recognised Recognised
At inincome Acquisition At inincome  Acquisition At
1January statement of Translation 31 December  statement of Translation 31 December
2005 (Note 25) subsidiary  differences 2005 (Note 25) subsidiary  differences 2006

Group $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Deferred

tax assets
Property, plant

and equipment 8,336 63,022 - - 71,358 17.340 - (1473) 87,225
Other financial

assefs 127.339 (60.227) - - 77,112 (10,558) - - 66,554
Tax value of loss

carry forward 1,107,111 (@A) - - 1,100,000 (231,403) - - 868,597
Ofther items 126,212 (23.289) - 626 103,549 (32,628) - - 70921
Total 1,368,998 (17.605) - 626 1,352,019 (257.249) - 1.473) 1,093,297
Deferred

tax liabilities
Property, plant

and equipment  (605,275) (159.924) (4.417.214) .377)  (5,183,790) 481,825 (360.817) (11,309 (5,074,091)
Intangible assets  (284,.976) (68.945) - - (353.921) (427,722) - 1.720 (779.923)
Other financial

assets - (27.318) - - (27.318) (121,087) - - (148,405)

Total (890.251) (256,187) (4417.214) a377)  (5.565029) 66984)  (360.817) 9.589) (6,002419)
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8 Deferred taxation (cont’d)

At Recognised At Recognised At
1 January in income 31 December inincome 31 December
2005 statement 2005 statement 2006

Company $ $ $
Deferred tax assets
Other financial assets 120,493 (46,218) 74,275 (74,275) -
Other items 32,114 34,288 66,402 (19,900) 46,502
Total 152,607 (11,930) 140,677 (94,175) 46,502
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (196,805) (252,696) (449,501) 177,786 (271,715)
Other financial assets - (27,959) (27 ,959) (121,962) (149,921
Total (196,805) (280,655) (477.460) 55,824 (421,636)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The amounts determined after appropriate offsetting

are included in the balance sheet as follows:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $
Deferred tax liabilities 5,890,427 5,389,460 375,134 336,783
Deferred tax assets 981,305 1,176,450 - -
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:
Group
2006 2005
$ $
Tox losses 4,252,189 4,804,003
Deductible temporary differences (10.414) 140,101
4,241,775 4,944,104

The tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax authorities and compliance with tax regulations in the respective countries in
which certain subsidiaries operate. The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the Group can utilise the benefits.
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9 Non-financial assets

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $
Transferable country club memberships 353,123 395,176 45,000 45,000
10 Property held for development
Group
2006 2005
$ $
Land and other related costs:
At 1 January 594,327 581,134
Translation differences (8.660) 13,193
At 31 December 585,667 594,327
11 Inventories
Group Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $
Raw materials 8,240,691 6,088,407 - -
Work-in-progress 234,489 209,936 - -
Finished goods 20,433,762 28,365,844 6,803,598 9,923,878
Packing materials 281,954 330,735 - -
29,190,896 34,994,922 6,803,598 9,923,878
Confract work-in-progress 12 314,054 440,445 - -
29,504,950 35,435,367 6,803,598 9,923,878
12 Contract work-in-progress
Group
2006 2005
$ $
Project costs 314,054 23,924,175
Attributable profit - 3,349,485
314,054 27,273,660
Progress billings - (26,833.215)
314,054 440,445
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13 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $

Trade receivables 50,658,786 47,942,645 8,023,444 8,732,617
Allowance for doubtful receivables (2,690,213) (2,676,060) (547,088) (497,806)
Net trade receivables 47,968,573 45,266,585 7,476,356 8,234,811
Deposits, prepayments and

others receivables 14 4,356,880 10,483,600 472919 7.275,564
Amounts due from:

- subsidiaries 15 - - 33,117,504 38,750,929

- associates 16 7,762,726 7,485,722 57,739 57,739

60,088,179 63,235,907 41,124,518 54,319,043

Receivables denominated in currencies other than the respective functional currencies of the Group entities comprise $485,351
(2005: $479,186) of trade receivables denominated in United States dollars and $55,305 (2005: $99,981) of trade receivables denominated

in Brunei dollars.

14 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

15

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $
Deposits 918.410 7,204,811 83,386 6,532,698
Prepayments 1,072,853 879,665 99.838 243,444
Non-trade receivables 2,334,459 2,257 497 259,479 359,626
Interest receivable 31,158 141,627 30,216 139,796
4,356,880 10,483,600 472,919 7,275,564
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Company
2006 2005
$ $
Interest-bearing loans 5,000,000 5,000,000
Current accounts:
- trade 1,468,149 5,298,629
- non-tfrade 36,606,355 38,757,300
43,074,504 49,055,929
Allowance for doubtful receivables (9,957,000) (10,305,000)
33,117,504 38,750,929

The non-frade amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The inferest-bearing loans are
unsecured and repayable on demand. At the balance sheet date, the loans bear interest of 5% (2005: 5%) per annum on $5,000,000

(2005: $5,000,000).
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16 Amounts due from associates

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $
Current accounts:
- non-trade 7,762,726 7.485,722 57,739 57,739

The non-tfrade amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $

Cash at bank and in hand 13,982,413 6,957,372 780,100 567,273
Fixed deposits with banks 35,324,245 29,513,220 26,722,184 17,621,266

49,306,658 36,470,592 27,502,284 18,188,539
Bank overdrafts 21 (1,478,606) (1,055,074) - -
Deposits pledged (3,702,003) (4,450.,843) - -

44,126,049 30,964,675 27,502,284 18,188,539

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum relating to cash and cash equivalents, excluding bank overdrafts, at the
balance sheet date for the Group and Company are 3.17% (2005: 2.50%) and 3.18% (2005: 2.67%) respectively. Interest rates are
repriced at intervals of up fo one month.

Bank deposits pledged represents amounts pledged as security by certain subsidiaries to obtain credit facilities.

Share capital
Group and Company
2006 2005

No. of shares No. of shares
Issued and fully-paid:
At 1 January 1.867.455,825 1.866,955.,825
Exercise of shares options - 500,000
At 31 December 1,867,455,825 1.867,455,825

On the date of commencement of the Companies (Amendment) Act 2005 on 30 January 2006:
(a) the concept of authorised share capital was abolished;
(b) shares of the Company ceased fo have par value; and

(c) the amount standing to the credit of the Company’s share premium account and capital redemption reserve became part
of the Company’s share capital.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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19 Equity compensation benefits

The PSC Executives’ Share Option Scheme (the Scheme) of the Company was approved and adopted by its members at an
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 8 July 2003. The Scheme is administered by the Company’s Remuneration Committee,
comprising three directors, Tao Yeoh Chi (Chairman), Chee Teck Kwong Patrick and John Chen Seow Phun.

The Company’s employees who are given awards in the Scheme are granted options to buy shares in the Company. The options
can only be exercised after a certain period (the “Option Period”), depending on the type of options granted to the employees.
During the Option Period, the employees have no right to the shares or the ability fo exercise any rights of a shareholder.

Options may be granted at the average of the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (SGX-ST) for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant (*Market Price”) or at a price of up to 20% discount
of the Market Price.

Under the Scheme, a non-discounted option vests 1 year after the date of grant and a discounted option vests 2 years after the
date of grant. Unless they are cancelled or have lapsed prior to the expiry date, options granted will expire 120 months after the
date of grant, except for options granted to non-executive directors which will expire 60 months affer the date of grant.

At the end of the financial year, details of the options granted under the Scheme on the unissued ordinary shares of the Company,
are as follows:

Number of
Date of Exercise Options Options option
grant of price outstanding Options Options outstanding holders at
options pershare at01/01/2006 cancelled exercised at 31/12/2006 31/12/2006 Exercise period
20/08/2003 $0.086 19,650,000 - - 19,650,000 23 20/08/2004 - 19/08/2013
20/08/2003 $0.085 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 3 20/08/2004 - 19/08/2008
23,650,000 - - 23,650,000
20 Reserves
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $
Share premium - 47,159,654 - 46,808,868
Ofther capital reserves 2,625,241 2,735,056 - 610,950
Fair value reserve (1,628,340) (198,040) (380.612) -
Currency translation reserve (3.528.,606) (1,398.541) - -
Accumulated profits 56,197,939 50,612,575 7,310,579 9,247 861

53,666,234 98,910,704 6,929,967 56,667,679
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20 Reserves (cont’d)

21

The currency tfranslation reserve comprises:

(o) exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies
are different from the functional currency of the Company; and

(b) exchange differences on monetary items which form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations, provided certain
conditions are met.

The fair value reserve includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments until the investment
is derecognised.

Other capital reserves comprise mainly of the reserve arising from bonus shares issued by a subsidiary and fransfers from accumulated
profits. In accordance with the relevant People’s Republic of China (PRC) regulations and the articles of association, certain
subsidiaries are required to appropriate at least 10% of its profit affer tax, as determined in accordance with PRC accounting
standards and regulations applicable to the subsidiaries, to the other capital reserves until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The appropriation for other capital reserves will be made based on its profit after tax of the annual statutory financial
statements of the subsidiaries.

The accumulated profits of the Group includes an amount of $15,477,839 (2005: $10,250,467) attributable to associates.

Financial liabilities

Group
Note 2006 2005
$ $
Non-current liabilities
Secured bank loans 1,932,288 1,424,448
Unsecured bank loans 981,000 -
Finance lease liabilities 186,307 199,163
3,099,595 1,623,611
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts 17 1,478,606 1,055,074
Secured bank loans 4,033,969 1,259,298
Unsecured bank loans 1,962,710 -
Bank term draft 11,125,374 5,833,724
Trust receipts - 156,843
Finance lease liabilities 112,565 142,354
18,713,224 8,447,293
Total loans and borrowings 21,812,819 10,070,904

Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities)

() Included in bank overdrafts of the Group is an amount of $583,575 (2005: $824,000), secured by a standby letter of credit from
a bank of $1,470,000 (2005: $1,470,000) which is guaranteed by the Company.
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21 Financial liabilities (cont’d)
(i) The secured bank loans comprise:
(o) Term loans of $2,212,219 (2005: $2,271,546), secured by the following:
(1) leasehold building held by a subsidiary with a carrying amount of $1,650,380 (2005: $1,679,932) as at 31 December 2006;

(2) property with a market value of $2,100,000 (2005: $2,100,000) owned by a minority shareholder which is also used to secure
the overdraft of $385,513 (2005:5231,372) of the subsidiary; and

@) corporate guarantee from the Company and personal guarantee from a minority shareholder.
The term loans are repayable by monthly installments over a period of 5 years.

(b) Term loans amounting to $3,754,038 (2005: $412,200), secured by the leasehold land, leasehold building and certain
plant and machinery held by a subsidiary with carrying amount of approximately RMB35,327,000 or $6,933,000 (2005: RMB58,737,000
or $12,106,000). These loans are repayable over a period of one month to two years.

(i) The bank term draft of $11,125,374 (2005: $5,833,724) with original term of 1 to 6 months is secured by the leasehold land, certain
leasehold buildings and certain plant and machinery held by subsidiaries with carrying amount of approximately RMB91,925,000
or $18,002,000 (2005: RMB58,737,000 or $$12,106,000) and bank deposits of $3,702,003 (2005: $4,450,843).

Finance lease liabilities

At 31 December 2006, the Group has obligations under finance leases that are payable as follows:

2006 2005
Payments Interest Principal Payments Interest Principal

Group $ $
Payable within 1 year 136,546 23,981 112,565 170,895 28,541 142,354
Payable after 1 year but within 5 years 197,794 29,324 168,470 226,570 34,960 191,610
Payable after 5 years 18,600 763 17.837 7,738 185 7,553
Total 352,940 54,068 298,872 405,203 63,686 341,517
Effective interest rates and repricing analysis

Effective Fixed interest maturing

interest Floating within 1to5 after

rate interest 1 year yedadrs 5 years Total

Group % $ $ $
2006
Bank overdrafts 4.25-7.08 1,478,606 - - - 1,478,606
Secured/unsecured bank loans:
- RMB fixed rate loans 3.74-6.44 - 4,906,762 1,790,986 - 6,697,748
- S$ floating rate loans 4.75-5.60 2,212,219 - - - 2,212,219
Finance lease liabilities 4,99 -9.52 - 70.470 132,324 96,078 298,872
Bank ferm drafts 0.05-0.375 - 11,125,374 - - 11,125,374

3,690,825 16,102,606 1,923,310 96,078 21,812,819
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21 Financial liabilities (cont’d)
Effective Fixed interest maturing
interest Floating within 1tob after
rate interest 1 year years 5 years Total
Group % $ $ $
2005
Bank overdrafts 6.00-6.50 1,055,074 - - - 1,055,074
Secured/unsecured bank loans:
- RMB fixed rate loans 522 - 412,200 - - 412,200
- S$ floating rate loans 4,75 -6.50 2,271,546 - - - 2,271,546
Trust receipts 3.85-5.55 156,843 - - - 156,843
Finance lease liabilities 2.50-6.90 - 142,355 199,162 - 341,517
Bank term drafts 0.05-0.375 - 5,833,724 - - 5,833,724
3,483,463 6,388,279 199,162 - 10,070,904
22 Trade and other payables
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $
Trade payables 25,799,553 34,002,556 8,771,620 10,491,057
Retention monies payable 174,949 569,312 - -
Amounts due to:
- subsidiaries (frade) - - 533,567 636,236
- subsidiaries (hon-trade) - - 7,145,575 10,954,798
- associates (non-trade) - 29,618 - -
- minority shareholder of
a subsidiary (non-trade) 1,000,000 1,000,000 - -
Ofther payables 5,843,388 7,167,796 3,574,580 4,022,311
Accruals 8,718,775 7.191,751 2,611,672 2,677,563
41,536,665 49,951,033 22,637,014 28,781,965

The non-frade amounts due to subsidiaries, associates and minority shareholder of a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Payables denominated in currencies other than the respective functional currencies of the Group entities comprise $5,092,126 (2005:
$12,782,698) of tfrade payables denominated in United States dollars and $300,444 (2005: $269,547) of trade payables denominated

in various other foreign currencies.
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23 Revenue
Group
2006 2005
$ $

Sale of goods 224,321,144 168,898,627
Revenue from construction contracts and healthcare consultancy 4,221,923 817,015
Fee income from education business - 74,362

228,543,067 169,790,004

24 Finance income and expense
Group
2006 2005
$ $

Interest income:
- available-for-sale debt securities 27,773 377,720
- fixed deposits 1,170,478 797,751
Dividend income 17,214 387,798
Gain on disposal of:
- available-for-sale debt securities 118,347 -
- available-for-sale equity securities 196,645 -
Movement in receivables carried at amortised cost 333,485 -
Finance income 1,863,942 1,663,269
Interest expense:
- bank borrowings 375,099 238,792
- finance lease liabilities 68.293 47,622
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale equity securities - 200,197
Impairment loss on:
- available-for-sale equity securities - 123,550
- available-for-sale debt securities - 118,327
Fair value loss on available-for-sale equity securities - 126,278
Movement in receivables carried at amortised cost - 488,194
Finance expense 443,392 1,342,960
Net finance income 1,420,550 220,309
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25 Income tax expense

Group
2006 2005
$ $

Current tax expense
Current year 1,446,283 1,544,025
Adjustment for prior years (140,887) (48,805)

1,305,396 1,495,220
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 912,078 500,251
Benefit of tax losses recognised - (166,572)
Adjustment for prior years (140,917) (69.,887)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (446,928) -

324,233 273,792

Income tax expense from continuing operations 1,629,629 1,769,012

Income tax expense
- continuing operations 1,629,629 1,769.012
- discontinued operations - -

1,629,629 1,769,012

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Group
2006 2005
$ $

Profit for the year 10,541,031 11,252,524
Total income tax expense 1,629,629 1,769,012
Profit excluding income tax 12,170,660 13,021,536
Tox calculated using Singapore tax rate of 20% 2,434,132 2,604,307
Effect of different fax rates in other countries 239,610 218,108
Income noft subject to fax (123,567) (1,900,257)
Tax effect on share of profit of associates (1,038,937) (949.,657)
Deferred tax benefit not recognised - 603,210
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,617,233 1,427,922
Benefit of tax losses recognised - (166,572)
Tox rebate (705,369) -
Adjustment for prior years (281,804) (108.692)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (446,928) -
Ofthers 35,259 40,643

1,629,629 1,769,012
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26 Profit for the year

The following items have been included in arriving at profit for the year:

Group
2006 2005
$ $
Amortisation of:
- development cost 206,837 231,705
- licences 1,246,604 815,675
- royalties 137,626 251,849
Bad debts recovered (tfrade) - (20,944)
Bad debfts written off 83,780 103,136
Consultancy fees paid to a director of a subsidiary - 10,656
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,734,778 3.899.375
Exchange loss/(gain) 69,442 (5619.442)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of:
- property, plant and equipment 6,811 44,931
- subsidiaries - (48,021)
- discontinued operations, net of fax - 618,014
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment - 571,211
Impairment loss on:
- non-financial assetfs 42,053 -
- investment in an associate - 203,240
Inventories written off 17.429 44,368
Negative goodwill on acquisition of a subsidiary - (7.920,177)
Non-audit fees paid to:
- auditors of the Company 37,199 25,693
- other auditors - 3.504
Operating lease expenses 1,298,258 1,491,398
Property, plant and equipment written off 675,585 114,129
Staff costs 27,037,686 22,331,493

Contribution to defined contribution plans included in staff costs 2,136,257 1,383,251
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27 Earnings per share

Group
2006 2005
$ $
Basic earnings per share is based on:
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 8,723,642 10,645,544
No. of shares No. of shares
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 1.867.455,825 1.867,198,291

Options to purchase 19,650,000 ordinary shares at $0.086 per share and 4,000,000 ordinary shares at $0.085 per share were outstanding
as af 31 December 2006 but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because these options were
anfidilutive.

Earnings per share for continuing operations

For the year ended 31 December 2005, earnings per share for continuing operations had been calculated using the same weighted
average number of outstanding shares of 1,867,198,291 during the year. The profit for the period used in the calculation of continuing
operations was $11,430,418.
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28 Dividends
2006 2005
$ $
Final dividend paid of 0.10 cents per share, less tax at 20% in respect of 2004 - 1,493,565
Final dividend paid of 0.20 cents per share, less tax at 20% in respect of 2005 2,987,929 -
2,987,929 1,493,565

After the balance sheet date, the Directors proposed the following dividends. These dividends have not been provided for.

2006 2005
$ $
Final dividend proposed of 0.20 cents (2005: 0.20 cents)
per share less tax at 18% (2005: 20%) 3,062,628 2,987,929

29 Discontinued operations / disposal of subsidiaries
Discontinued operations
In 2005, the Group sold its subsidiary, The Playford Hotel Pty Ltd, comprising its Hotel division — a separate business segment. The
consideration for the disposal was scheduled to be received as follows:

a.  $$959,250 on disposal

b. A$750,000 by 30 June 2006
c. A$750,000 by 30 June 2007
d. A$3,750,000 by 30 June 2008

The results of the discontinued operations in 2005 up to the date of disposal were as follows:

2005
$

Revenue 6,033,992
Expenses (6,200,852)
Loss before taxation from discontinued operations (166.,860)
Income tax expense -
Loss affer tax from discontinued operations but before loss on sale

of discontinued operations (166,860)
Loss on sale of discontinued operations (618,014)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (784,874)
Operating cash flows 1,272,864
Investing cash flows -
Financing cash flows (256,240)

Total cash flows 1,016,624
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29 Discontinued operations / disposal of subsidiaries (cont’d)
Disposal of other subsidiaries

In 2005, the Group also disposed of its shareholdings in Cornell Education Group Pte Ltd and was in the process of deregistering
the following subsidiaries under the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50:

e A.T. Chemical Pte Ltd
¢ Mountain Investment Pte Ltd
e PSC Tibbeftt & Britten Logistics Pte Ltd

These subsidiaries are in the process of deregistration in 2006.

The effects of the disposal of the discontinued operations and other subsidiaries were as follows:

2005
$
Property, plant and equipment 39,600,427
Ofther assets 435,507
Inventories 259,897
Trade and other receivables 1,637,162
Cash and cash equivalents 1,929,204
Trade and other payables (4,312,235)
Interest-bearing liabilities (27,327 .996)
Minority interests (1,729,006)
Net assets disposed of 10,492,950
Realised exchange gain on disposal (1,905,143)
Loss on disposal (569,993)
Total cash consideration 8,017,814
Cash consideration received 1,267,579
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,929,204)

Net cash outflow (661,625)



1 O 8 PSC COPORATION LTD
ANNUAL REPORT 2006

+ . )
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2006

30 Segment information

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services (business segment),
or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments. The primary format, business
segments, is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.

Infer-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly atftributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise interest-earnings assets and revenue, borrowings and expenses and
corporate assets and expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

Business segments

During the financial year, the Company reviewed the various activities of the Group and regrouped the business activities as
follow to have a better analysis of performance:

I Consumer Essentials
Consumer Business  : Supply of provisions and household consumer products, retail franchising, manufacture and sale
of soya bean products, noodles. Development, distribution and licensing of education and
entertainment products.

Health Solutions . Construction of hospital turnkey projects and provision of health-care consultancy and hospital
management services.

Il Strategic Investments

Packaging . Manufacture and sale of corrugated paper products and other packaging products.

Geographical segments

The Group’s business is managed in four principal geographical areas, namely, Singapore, Malaysia, China and Australia
(associates’operations).

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical location of
customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.
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30 Segment information (cont’d)

Consumer Essentials Strategic Investments
Total
Consumer Health continuing Hotel Total

Business Solutions Packaging Others operations (Discontinued) operations
Group
2006
Revenue and expenses
Total revenue 169,508,666 4,221,923 54,812,478 - 228,543,067 - 228,543,067
Segment resulfs 3,284,661 (167.355) 2,467,861 12,309 5,597,476 - 5,597.476
Unallocated results (42,050) - (42,050)
Results from 5,655,426 - 5,655,426

operating activities
Net finance income 1.420,550 - 1,420,550
Share of profit of associates 5,194,684 - 5,194,684
Income tax expense (1,629,629) - (1,629,629)
Profit for the year 10,541,031 = 10,541,031
2005
Revenue and expenses
Total revenue 158,087,847 817.014 10,885,143 - 169,790,004 6,033,992 175,823,996
Segment resulfs 3,315,321 (1.911,068) 178,690  (461,964) 1,120,879 427,423 1,548,302
Unallocated results 7,716,937 - 7,716,937
Results from 8,837,816 427,423 9,265,239
operating activities

Net finance income 220,309 (594,283) (373.974)
Share of profit of associates 4,748,285 - 4,748,285
Income tax expense (1,769.012) - (1,769.012)
Profit/(loss) affer tax 12,037,398 (166,860) 11,870,538
Loss on sale of - 618,014) (618,014)

discontinued operations
Profit for the year 12,037,398 (784,874) 11,252,524
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30 Segment information (cont’d)

Consumer Essentials Strategic Investments
Total
Consumer Health continuing Hotel Total

Business Solutions Packaging Others operations (Discontinued)  operations
Group
2006
Assets
Segment assets 129,961,459 8,433,786 75,532,820 7,930,050 221,858,115 - 221,858,115
Investments in associates 11,017 22,294,608 - 25918013 48,223,638 - 48,223,638
Unallocated assets 19,461,046 - 19,461,046
Total assets 289,542,799 - 289,542,799
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 32,365,109 654,374 8,509,579 7.603 41,536,665 - 41,536,665
Unallocated liabilities 30,279,266 - 30,279,266
Total liabilities 71,815,931 - 71,815,931
2005
Assets
Segments assests 134,138,473 8,264,747 63,004,907 8,029,059 213,437,186 - 213,437,186
Investments in associates - 21,351,237 - 24,340,710 45,691,947 - 45,691,947
Unallocated assets 22,236,557 - 22,236,557
Total assets 281,365,690 - 281,365,690
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 40,215,380 1,022,226 8,705,884 7.543 49,951,033 - 49,951,033
Unallocated liabilities 17,814,240 - 17,814,240
Total liabilities 67,765,273 - 67,765,273
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30 Segment information (cont’d)

Consumer Essentials Strategic Investments
Total
Consumer Health continuing Hotel Total
Business Solutions Packaging Others operations (Discontinued)  operations

Group
2006
Other segment information
Amortisation 1,591,067 - - - 1,591,067 - 1,591,067
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 2,883,986 127,104 3,723,688 - 6,734,778 - 6,734,778
Capital expenditure 3,126,792 16,318 1216318 228,146 4,587,574 - 4,587,574
Other non-cash expenses 488,379 644,249 75,282 6,270 1,214,180 - 1,214,180
2005
Other segment information
Amortisation 1,299,229 - - - 1,299,229 - 1,299,229
Depreciation of

and impairment

loss on property,

plant and equipment 2,902,777 176,229 820,369 - 3.899.375 382,834 4,282,209
Capital expenditure 10,305,932 87,534 420,542 1,150,088 11,964,096 - 11,964,006

Other non-cash expenses 559,237 599,286 1,002 978,103 2,137,628 - 2,137,628
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30 Segment information (cont’d)

Geographical segments

Total
continuing Hotel Total

Singapore Malaysia China operations (Discontinued) operations
2006 $ $ $
Revenue from external customers 145,348,784 43,027,047 40,167,236 228,543,067 - 228,543,067
Segment assets 127,425,478 38,516,550 55,916,087 221,858,115 - 221,858,115
Capital expenditure 1,848,875 1,518,308 1,220,391 4,587,574 - 4,587,574
2005
Revenue from external customers 122,685,082 38,246,314 8,858,608 169,790,004 6,033,992 175,823,996
Segment assets 156,460,551 40,510,071 16,466,564 213,437,186 - 213,437,186
Capital expenditure 9,174,603 2,359,963 429,530 11,964,096 - 11,964,096

31 Acquisition of Subsidiary
Acaquisition in 2006

On 26 September 2006, the Group acquired 80% of the shares of Hefei Dansun Packaging Co., Ltd, an unlisted company based in
the People’s Republic of China specialising in the manufacture of corrugated paper cartons.

During the period from 1 October to 31 December 2006, Hefei Dansun Packaging Co., Ltd has contributed $80,255 to the net profit
of the Group. If the combination had taken place af the beginning of the year, the profit for the Group attributable to shareholders
would have been $8,756,631 and revenue from continuing operations would have been $234,804,055.

The goodwill of $608,447 arising from the acquisition of Hefei Dansun Packaging Co., Ltd has been reflected under the Balance
Sheet as an Intangible Asset, and is attributable to the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the tangible net
assets acquired.

Fair value adjustments amounting fo $2,004,539 and $360,817 were made to the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
amounting to $5,392,188 and deferred tax liability, in arriving af the recognised value of $7,396,727 and $360.817 respectively.

Acaquisition in 2005

On 18 October 2005, the Group acquired 50.78% share in Tat Seng Packaging Group Ltd for $16,961,750 satisfied in cash. Subsequently,
through a mandatory unconditional cash offer for all the remaining shares in issue in the subsidiary, the Group acquired an additional
13.17% of the subsidiary for $4,400,663 satisfied in cash. The total consideration of the acquisition of $21,513,871 included all related
acquisition expenses.

The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method. During the period from 18 October fo 31 December 2005, Tat Seng
Packaging Group Ltd and its subsidiary contributed a net profit of $38,190 to the consolidated net profit for the year. If the combination
had taken place at the beginning of the year, the profit for the Group attributable to shareholders would have been $12,260,493
and revenue from continuing operations would have been $204,362,729.

The negative goodwill arising from the acquisition of Tat Seng Packaging Group Ltd has been reflected under Other operating
income, and is atfributable to the excess of the fair value of the tangible net assets acquired over the purchase consideration. Fair
value adjustments amounting to $3,364,505 and $672,901 were made to the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
amounting to $38,892,043 and deferred tax liability of $3,744,314, in arriving at the recognised value of $42,256,548 and $4,417,215
respectively.
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31 Acquisition of Subsidiary (cont’d)

The effects of acquisition of subsidiaries are set out below:

Recognised Values
2006 2005
$ $

Net assets acquired

Property, plant and equipment 7,396,727 42,256,548
Inventories 1,178,370 4,864,728
Trade and other receivables 2,462,954 9,821,372
Cash and cash equivalents 1,985,764 7,737,028
Trade and other payables @8.741,727) (13,135,312)
Current tax payable 11.317) (1,167,531)
Current financial liabilities (2,408,628) -
Non-current financial liabilities (2,734,796) 4.417,215)
Deferred tax liability (360,817) -
Minority inferests (753,306) (16,525,570)
Net assets acquired 3,013,224 29,434,048
Goodwill/(negative goodwill) on acquisition 608,447 (7.920,177)
Purchase consideration 3,621,671 21,513,871

Cash and bank balances acquired (1,985,764) (7.737,028)
Net cash outflow 1,635,907 13,776,843

32 Financial instruments

Risk management is infegral to the whole business of the Group. The Group has a system of controls in place to create an acceptable
balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the risks. The management continually monitors the Group'’s
risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.

Credit risk

The Group has a credit policy in place which establishes credit limits for customers and monitors their balances on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. Cash and fixed deposits are placed
with banks and financial institutions which are regulated.

At the balance sheet date, credit risk is concentrated mainly in cash and fixed deposits with banks and trade receivables. Credit
risk relating fo tfrade receivables is limited due to the Group’s many varied customers. These customers are internationally dispersed,
are engaged in a wide spectrum of activities, and sell in a variety of end markets. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet. The Company is exposed to credif risk in connection with
the financial guarantees it has issued. The credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised upon a default by the parties
to which the guarantees were given. To mitigate these risks, management continually monitors the risks and has established processes
including performing credit evaluations of the parties to whom it is providing the guarantee.
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32

33

Financial instruments (cont’d)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities. These comprise
mainly interest bearing borrowings and deposits in financial institutions.

The Group adopts a policy of constantly monitoring movements in interest rates. Presently, it does not use derivative financial
instfruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed fo foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than
the respective functional currencies of Group entities. The currencies giving rise fo this risk are primarily Australian dollars, Hong Kong

dollars, New Taiwan dollars, Japanese yen, Brunei dollars and United States dollars.

There is no formal hedging policy with respect to foreign exchange exposures. Exposure to currency risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group endeavours to keep the net exposure at an acceptable level.

Estimation of fair values

Investments in equity and debt securities

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is determined by reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting date.
Other financial assets and liabilities

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including trade and other receivables,

cash and cash equivalents, frade and other payables and interest-bearing liabilities) approximate their fair values. All other financial
assets and liabilities are discounted to determine their fair values.

Commitments
At 31 December 2006, the Group and the Company have the following commitments:
(a) Capital commitments in respect of leasehold improvement contracts:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $

Contracted but not provided for 3,369,558 547,032 1,471,798 -
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33

34

Commitments (cont’d)

(b) Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $
- Within 1 year 1,523,071 1,505,524 701,520 666,864
- After 1 year but within 5 years 4,324,156 3,906,776 2,849,173 2,634,956
- After 5 years 21,298,184 17,989,112 10,373,184 10,549,112
27145411 23,401,412 13,923,877 13,850,932

Included in the commitments for future minimum lease payments is annual land rent relating to the leasehold building owned
by the Company built on land subject to a 60-year lease commencing from 1 May 1967. The annual land rent currently payable
under the lease agreement is $676,501 (2005: $587,059).

Contingent liabilities - unsecured
Company

(a) As at 31 December 2006, the Company has issued unsecured guarantees to banks in respect of credit facilities granted
to its subsidiaries of $6,821,675 (2005: $13,958.,567).

(b) The Company has given formal undertakings, which are unsecured, to provide financial support to certain of its subsidiaries.
As at 31 December 2006, the deficits in shareholders’ funds of these subsidiaries amounted to $14,907,602 (2005: $15,145,728).

Group

A legal claim was filed by an architect against a subsidiary and its associate (the “companies”) in Malaysia for payment of
architectural services rendered by the architect and another party (the “architects”). The claim totalled to RM148,711 and
US$338,794 (equivalent to a total of $584,154 af 31 December 2006) plus interest and costs.

The matter is pending frial. No further date has been given yet pending sentencing of the Plaintiff for contempt of Court. Other
than stated above, the outcome of the case is however, cannot be presently determined.

The directors are of the opinion that the claim has no merit as the drawings submitted by the Architects were incomplete and
did not meet the Government’s confractual requirements. Accordingly, no provision for any liability arising from the claim has
been made in the financial statements.
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35 Related parties
Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

Group
2006 2005
$ $
Short-term employee benefits 3,428,182 2,731,046

The key management personnel comprise the executive directors, executive vice president, senior vice presidents, vice president
and group financial controller.

Other fransactions with key management personnel

The Company entfered info contracts with a company controlled by a director of the Company for the provision of advisory and
consultancy services to the Company for an aggregate amount of $60,000 (2005: $60,000).

Other related party fransactions

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statfements, the fransactions with related parties are as follows:

Group
2006 2005
$ $
Purchases 85,717 331,970
Construction services rendered - 387,872
Hire of motor vehicles payable 13,019 13.221
Management and administrative fees receivable 23,975 169.341
Rental income received/receivable 184,037 58,679

Dividend income 15,980 -
Administrative fee receivable - 419,609
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Directors’ remuneration

Company’s directors receiving remuneration from the Group:
Number of directors

2006 2005
Remuneration of:
$1,000,001 to $1,250,000 1 -
$750,001 to $1,000,000 1
$500,001 to $750,000 - 2
$250,001 to $500,000 - 1
$250,000 and below 7" 7"

9 10
* Two directors from the remuneration band resigned during the financial year 2007 (2005: 1).
2 Group properties
Description of properties held by the Group is as follows:
Location Description Tenure
348 Jalan Boon Lay, Two-storey warehouse with annexed 60-year lease from 1 May 1967 and
Singapore 619529 office block used by the Group both an option to renew for 22 years,
for its operations and for rental income 3 months and 30 days
348 Jalan Boon Lay, Single-storey factory used by a 60-year lease from1 May 1967 and
Singapore 619529 subsidiary for its operations an option to renew for 22 years,
3 months and 30 days

28 Senoko Drive, Factory cum office building used 30-year lease from 16 December
Singapore 758214 by a subsidiary for its operations 1979 and extension for an

additional 30 years

Lot MLO 1101, Kampong Factory used by a subsidiary for Freehold
Bukit Kulai, Johor, Malaysia its operations
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2 Group properties (cont’d)
Description of properties held by the Group is as follows:

Location Description Tenure

Lot MLO 1102 and 1103, Vacant land Freehold
Mukim of Sedenak, Kulai,
Johor, Malaysia

Lot 249, GPP 4841 Town Area Vacant land Freehold
XX District of Melaka Tengah,
Melaka, Malaysia

Wilayah Pengembangan Vacant land 30-year lease from 11 March 1986
Sekupang Patam, Batam,
Indonesia

PTD 63419 HSD 248337, Vacant land Freehold
PTD 63421 HSD 248339 and

PTD 63422 HSD 248340

Mukim of Pulai District of

Johor Bahru, Johor, Malaysia

10 Ubi Crescent #05-80, 86-90 Flatted factory units used by a 60-year lease from 5 July 1997
Singapore 408564 subsidiary for its operations

Suzhou Jiangsu Province Factory premises, office building, 50-year lease from:

Wanting Town, dormitory and development - 33,333 sg m from 15 October 1995
88 Wendu Road, - 12,667 sgm from 23 September 1998
People’s Republic of China - 12,798 sg m from13 February 2001
105 Zipeng Road Single storey factory building with 48-year lease from 7 March 2005
HeFei Eco-Tech Development double storey office building to 1 August 2053

Zone, Anhui Province,
People’s Republic of China
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3 Interested person transactions

Aggregate value of all fransactions

Aggregate value of all fransactions conducted under a shareholders’
(excluding transactions less than $100,000 mandate pursuant to Rule 920 of the
and fransactions conducted under a SGX Listing Manual (excluding
shareholders’ mandate pursuant to Rule 920) transactions less than $100,000)

Interested person - -

4 Material contracts

Except as disclosed in Note 35 to the financial statements, there are no other material contracts entered into between the Company
and its subsidiaries during the financial year involving the interest of the chief executive officer or each director of the Company.

5 Usage of proceeds from rights issue

A rights issue of 533,415,950 fully-paid ordinary shares of $0.05 each at an issue price of $0.055 for each rights share was made by
the Company in 2004 to exisiting shareholders in the proportion of two shares for every five shares held (“Rights Issue”). The Company
received net proceeds of $29,045,497 from the Rights Issue and the amount of which utilisation as at 31 December 2006 were

as follows:
2006
$
Purchase of 50.78% equity interest in Tat Seng Packaging Group Ltd 12,796,925
Purchase of additional 13.17% equity in Tat Seng through offer shares 4,400,663
Shareholder’s loan to acquire additional 12% equity interest in a healthcare associate in Australia 2,676,758

19.874,346
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M 2006 2005 2006 2005
$ $ $ $
B R~
FlREEE 3 76,706,564 73,868,008 19,726,942 20,418,900
FoTHE 4 - - 46,218,055 45,198,055
KEAF 5 48,223,638 45,691,947 27,163,530 27,163,530
Hit&mA 6 13,668,881 10,920,215 2,480,300 -
L il R s i 3,962,034 4,567,281 - -
EREF 7 6,161,800 4,296,908 - -
BIE B A 8 981,305 1,176,450 - -
149,704,222 140,520,809 95,588,827 92,780,485
HNE=
Hit&mA 6 - 4,713,512 - 4,713,512
LA 9 353,123 395,176 45,000 45,000
BEFEE~ 10 585,667 594,327 - -
7 5% 1 29,504,950 35,435,367 6,803,598 9,923,878
oz W T e R L it 7 i 2k 13 60,088,179 63,235,907 41,124,518 54,319,043
MEMRALZEY 17 49,306,658 36,470,592 27,502,284 18,188,539
139,838,577 140,844,881 75,475,400 87,189,972
#rEET 289,542,799 281,365,690 171,064,227 179,970,457
IHERFZ R E
B 18 140,792,609 93,372,791 140,792,609 93,372,791
k& 20 53,666,234 98,910,704 6,929,967 56,667,679
194,458,843 192,283,495 147,722,576 150,040,470
DEBRFR I 23,268,025 21,316,922 - -
BEREET 217,726,868 213,600,417 147,722,576 150,040,470
E[ 5 kiR
SRR 21 3,099,595 1,623,611 - -
138 7 {5 B 2 8 5,890,427 5,389,460 375,134 336,783
8,990,022 7,013,071 375,134 336,783
W Bh i
Rz T A0t 7 £k 22 41,536,665 49,951,033 22,637,014 28,781,965
&R R 21 18,713,224 8,447 293 - -
7 HA R A B 2,576,020 2,353,876 329,503 811,239
62,825,909 60,752,202 22,966,517 29,593,204
ffm&it 71,815,931 67,765,273 23,341,651 29,929,987
GEBRFENEEIT 289,542,799 281,365,690 171,064,227 179,970,457

MENERMSREROEARBIZ—.
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#HZE20005128318
BEEFLED
ip= 2006 2005
$ $
PN 23 228,543,067 169,790,004
EHFERmBA (175,126016)  (130,506,601)
EH 53,417,051 39,283,403
HiE N 1,946,762 11,100,133
NiEEA (25,093,156) (21,558,307)
1THZE A (23,501,051) (18,998,722)
HibEWEH (1.214,180) (988,691)
BELEHZEF 5,555,426 8.837.816
e 24 1,420,550 220,309
BEARRFSIK (FFE) 5,194,684 4,748,285
BEr R 12,170,660 13,806,410
iE% 25 (1,629.,629) (1,769,012)
BERELVEHZHEEF 10,541,031 12,037,398
&ItZEWFED
AEPLIEEVEHZSH (FF) - (784,874)
FEHER 26 10,541,031 11,252,524
IAE:
HERFRZ W E 8,723,642 10,645,544
DEBE RN 1,817,389 606,980
FEEFR 10,541,031 11,252,524
sSEEF
SRBFER (4) 27 0.47 0.57
SRAEFME (9) 27 0.47 0.57
BEEELES
SREFER (4) 27 0.47 0.61
FREFME (5) 27 0.47 0.61

MR BREMSREMARIBIZ—.
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12 March 2007
Number of Issued and Fully Paid Shares . 1,867,455,825
Class of Shares : Ordinary Shares with equal voting rights
Issued and Fully Paid Share Capital : $$140,792,609.09

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS as at 12 March 2007

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS NUMBER OF SHARES HELD SHAREHOLDING

DIRECT INTEREST DEEMED INTEREST PERCENTAGE %
Pemscorp Pte Ltd 437,583,000 - 23.43 (1)
QAF Limited - 437,583,000 23.43 (1)
Andree Halim - 437,583,000 23.43 (2)
Rich Life Holdings Pte Ltd 433,175,506 - 23.20
Hanny Magnetics (B.V.1.) Limited - 452,978,506 24.26 (3)
Hanny Holdings Limited - 452,978,506 2426 (4)
Famex Investment Limited - 452,978,506 24.26 (4)
Mankar Assets Limited - 452,978,506 24.26 (4)
[TC Investment Holdings Limited - 491,028,506 (5) 26.29 (4)
[TC Corporation Limited - 491,028,506 26.29 (4)
Galaxyway Investments Limited - 491,028,506 26.29 (4)
Chinaview International Limited - 491,028,506 26.29 (4)
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles - 491,028,506 26.29 (4)

Notes:

M

@

®

@

®

Pemscorp Pte Ltd is a wholly-owned subsidiary of QAF Limited. QAF Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Pemscorp Pte Ltd.

Pursuant to Section 7(4)(b) of the Companies Act, Andree Halim is deemed to have an interest through QAF Limited, which is
deemed to have an interest through its wholly-owned subsidiary Pemscorp Pte Ltd, by virfue of his controlling inferest in QAF Limited.

Hanny Magnetics (B.V.1.) Limited is deemed to be interested in the 433,175,506 shares and 19,803,000 shares held by Rich Life
Holdings Pte Ltd and Cyber Generation Limited respectively, both of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Hanny Magnetics
(B.V.l) Limited.

Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles is deemed to have an interest through Chinaview International Limited, which is deemed to have
an inferest through Galaxyway Investments Limited, which is deemed to have an interest through ITC Corporation Limited, which
is deemed to have an inferest through ITC Investment Holdings Limited, which is deemed to have an interest through Mankar Assets
Limited, which is deemed to have an interest through Famex Investment Limited, which is deemed to have an interest through
Hanny Holdings Limited, which i deemed to have an interest through Hanny Magnetics (B.V.1.) Limited.

ITC Investment Holdings Limited is deemed fo be interested in 452,978,506 shares through Hanny Magnetics (B.V.1.) Limited and
38,050,000 shares owned in High Prime Limited, its wholly owned subsidiary.
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DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDING as at 21 January 2007

HOLDINGS IN THE NAME OF DIRECTOR OR HOLDINGS IN WHICH THE DIRECTOR IS
DIRECTOR IN WHICH DIRECTOR HAS A DIRECT INTEREST DEEMED TO HAVE AN INTEREST
Foo Der Rong 2,922,500 -

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS as at 12 March 2007

RANGE OF SHAREHOLDINGS NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS % NO. OF SHARES %
1-999 136 1.85 37.178 0.00
1,000 - 10,000 1.934 26.36 13,866,085 0.74
10,001 - 1,000,000 5,207 70.96 357,490,900 19.15
1,000,001 and above 61 0.83 1.496,061,662 80.11
7,338 100.00 1.867.455,825 100.00

SHAREHOLDING HELD IN HANDS OF PUBLIC

Based on information available to the Company as at 12 March 2007, 49.97 % of the issued ordinary shares of the Company is held by
the public. Rule 723 of the Listing Manual issued by SGX-ST is therefore complied with.

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS LIST - TOP 20 as af 12 March 2007

NO. NAME OF SHAREHOLDER NO. OF SHARES HELD %

1. Pemscorp Pte Ltd 437,583,000 23.43
2. DBS Vickers Secuirities (S) Pte Ltd 310,235,350 16.61
3. OCBC Securities Private Ltd 292,717,506 15.68
4, CIMB Bank Nominees (S) Ltd 95,000,000 5.09
5. United Overseas Bank Nominees Pte Ltd 76,728,415 411
6. DBS Nominees Pte Ltd 56,718,787 3.04
7. HL Bank Nominees (S) Pte Ltd 41,523,000 2.22
8. CIMB-GK Securities Pte Ltd 32,921,339 1.76
9. OCBC Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 30,092,455 1.61
10. Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 17,406,200 0.93
1. HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd 6,800,400 0.36
12. Sim Huat Hoe 5,687,750 0.31
13. UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd 4,978,450 0.27
14. Tan Koon Poh 4,337,850 0.23
15. Law Ah'Yi 4,182,900 0.22
16. Philip Securities Pte Ltd 4,031,750 0.22
17. Eyu Chin Wat @ Yeo An Hai or Lim Siew Lian 3,562,000 0.19
18. Kim Eng Securities Pte Ltd 3,144,000 0.17
19. Yeo Cheh 3,000,000 0.16
20. Ng Hock Chuan 2,572,350 0.14

1,433,223,502 76.75
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
PSC Corporation Ltd

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
(Company Registration No. 197400888M)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirty-Third Annual General Meeting of PSC Corporation Ltd will be held at 348 Jalan Boon Lay,
Singapore 619529 on Wednesday, 25 April 2007 at 11:00 a.m. to fransact the following businesses:-

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2006 and the Auditors’
Report thereon.
(Resolution 1)

To declare a Final Dividend of 0.20 cents per share less 18% income tax for the year ended 31 December 2006.
(Resolution 2)

To re-elect the following Directors retiring in accordance with the Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association:

(@) DrJohn Chen Seow Phun (Resolution 3a)
() Mr Chee Teck Kwong (Resolution 3b)
To re-appoint KPMG as Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration. (Resolution 4)

To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees of $$384,000 for the year ended 31 December 2006.
(2005: $$368,250) (Resolution 5)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, fo pass the following Resolutions 6 to 9 with or without amendments as ordinary resolutions:

“That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the "Companies Act”) and the listing rules of The Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited ("SGX-ST"), authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to:

(Resolution 6)
@  allot and issue shares in the Company; and

(i) issue convertible securities and (notwithstanding that the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in
force) allot and issue any shares in the Company pursuant to the conversion or exercise of convertible securities issued while
this Resolution was force, (whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise) at any time and upon such terms and conditions
and for such purposes and to such persons as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit, provided that:-

(o) the aggregate number of shares (including any shares to be issued pursuant to the conversion or exercise of convertible
securifies) in the Company to be issued pursuant to this Resolution does not exceed 50 per cent (50%) of the issued share
capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (b) below), of which the aggregate number
of shares (including any shares to be issued pursuant to the conversion or exercise of convertible securities) to be issued
other than on a pro rata basis to the shareholders of the Company does not exceed 20 per cent (20%) of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (b) below);
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7.

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
(Company Registration No. 197400888M)

(b) subject to such munner of culculution us May be prescribed by the SGX-ST, for the purpose of determining the
uyyreyute humber of shares that may be issued under sub-puragraph (u) ubove, the percentuge of issued shure
capital shall be bused on the issued share capital of the Company at the time this Resolution is pussed, ufter
adjusting for:

(H new shures arising from the conversion or exercise of uny convertible securities or share options on issue ut the fime
this Resolution is pussed; und

(i) uny subseyuent consolidation or subdivision of shares; and

() unless revoked or varied by the Company in generdl meeting, the authority conferred by this Resolution shall continue
in force until the conclusion of the hext Ahnuul General Meeting of the Compuny or the date by which the hext
Annudl Generul Meeting of the Compuny is reyuired by law to be held, whichever is the eurlier.”

“That pursuant to Section 161 of the Compunies Act, authority be and is hereby ygiven to the Directors to dllot and issue from fime
to time such humber of shares as may be required to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Options granted under the PSC
Executives’ Share Option Scheme (including to dllot und issue shares us muy be required to be issued pursuunt to the exercise of
Options grunted while this Resolution is in force hotwithstanding thut the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceused
to be in force ut the time of the dllotment und issue of the shares) provided ulways that the aggreyaute humber of shares to be
issued pursuunt to the Scheme shall not exceed ten per cent (10%) of the totdl issued shure capitul of the Compuny from time
to time.”

(Resolution 7)

“Thut for the purposes of Sections 76C und 76E of the Compuanies Act, the exercise by the Directors of the Compuny of dll the
powers of the Compuny to purchuse or otherwise ucquire issued ordinury shares fully puid in the capital of the Compuny (“Shares”)
not exceediny in uyyreyute the Prescribed Limit (us defined below) at such price or prices us muy be determined by the Directors
from time to time up to the Mauximum Price (us defined below), whether by way of:

(Resolution 8)

@  murket purchuse(s) on the SGX-ST; and/or

(i) off-murket purchuse(s) (if effected otherwise thun on the SGX-ST) in uccordunce with uny equul uccess scheme(s) us muy
be determined or formuluted by the Directors us they consider fit, which scheme(s) shall sutisfy dll the conditions prescribed
by the Compunies Act, und otherwise in uccordunce with dll other laws, regulations and rules of the SGX-ST us may for the
time beiny be applicauble,

be und is hereby uuthorised und upproved yenerdlly und unconditionadlly (the “Shure Buy Buck Maundute”).

That, unless revoked or varied by the Compuany in geheral meeting, the Share Buy Back Mandate continue fo be in force until the
dute that the hext Annuul Genheral Meeting is held or is required by luw to be held, whichever is eurlier (the "Relevant Period").

Thut the Directors of the Compuny be hereby uuthorised to complete und do dll such acts and things (including, without limitation,
executing such documents und upproving umendments, dlferations and modificutions to uny document required by the Share
Buy Buck Mundute) us they or he may consider expedient, necessury or deem fit to give effect to the tfrunsuctions contempluted
or uuthorised by this Resolution.
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(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
(Company Registration No. 197400888M)

In this Resolution:

“Prescribed Limit” means the number of issued Shares representing eight per cent (8%) of the issued ordinary share capital of the
Company (excluding any ordinary shares held as freasury shares by the Company from fime to fime) as at the date of passing of this
Resolution or such reduced issued share capital of the Company pursuant o a reduction of the share capital of the Company in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act at any time during the Relevant Period;

“Maximum Price” in relation to a Share to be purchased or acquired means the purchase price which shall not exceed the sum
(excluding brokerage, stamp duties, applicable goods and services tax and other expenses) constituting five per cent (56%) above
the Average Closing Market Price of the Shares; and

*Average Closing Market Price” means the average of the last dealt prices of the Shares for the five consecutive frading days on which
the Shares are fransacted on the SGX-ST immediately preceding the date of the market purchase by the Company, or as the case
may be, the date of the making of an offer pursuant to the off-market purchase, and deemed to be adjusted, in accordance with
the listing rules of the SGX-ST, for any corporate action that occurs affer the said five day period.”

NOTICE OF BOOKS CLOSURE DATE

NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN that the Share Transfer Books and Register of Members of the Company will be closed on 4 May 2007,
for the purpose of determining the Members’ entitlements to the dividends to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on 25 April 2007.

Duly completed registrable transfers in respect of shares of the Company received by the Company’s Share Registrar, M & C Services
Private Limited, of 138 Robinson Road, #17-00 The Corporate Office, Singapore 068906 up to 5.00 p.m. on 3 May 2007 will be registered
to determine Members’ entitlements to such dividends. Members whose Securities Accounts with The Central Depository (Pte) Ltd are

credited with shares of the Company as at 5.00 p.m. on 3 May 2007 will be entitled to such proposed dividends.

The proposed dividends, if approved by Members at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 18 May 2007.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Angela Chan
Company Secretary
Singapore

9 April 2007
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NOTES:-

D

2)

3)

)

A member entitled to attend and vote af the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to atfend and vote in his stead.
A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall, in the case of an individual, be signed by the appointor or his attorney, and in case of a
corporation shall be either under its common seal or sighed by its atforney or a duly authorised officer on behalf of the corporation.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 348 Jalan Boon Lay, Singapore
619529 not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting.

EXPLANATORY NOTES ON THE SPECIAL BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED:-

D

2)

3)

Proposed ordinary Resolution 6, if passed, will empower the Directors to issue shares in the Company, convertible securities and/or
shares pursuant to convertible securities of the Company up fo an amount not exceeding in fotal 50 per cent (60%) of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company with a sub-limit of 20 per cent (20%) of shares issued other than on a pro rata basis to
shareholders. For the purpose of determining the aggregate number of ordinary shares that may be issued, the percentage of
issued share capital shall be based on the issued share capital of the Company at the time that Resolution 6 is passed, after
adjusting for (a) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share options on issue atf the
time that Resolution 6 is passed, and (b) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares.

Proposed ordinary Resolution 7, if passed, will empower the Directors to issue shares pursuant to the exercise of Options granted
under the PSC Executives’ Share Option Scheme 2003 which was approved at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company
held on 8 July 2003.

Proposed ordinary Resolution 8, if passed, will empower the Directors to purchase or acquire, from the date of the above meeting
to the date of the next Annual General Meeting, an aggregate amount not exceeding eight per cent (8%) of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of Resolution 8. More details of the Share Buy Back Mandate to be renewed is set out in
the letter to shareholders enclosed with this Notice.
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TEST
1. EMEZE2006E12A3HIEMBEEZEERERTHEZNKENFEITINRE.
[RiINE—]
2. BERAEHZE2006F12AIALEMBEFREZSE020MFELRE (MINK18%FTEH ).
[RIME]
3. RIFATAIERETES, EXUTEKNES:
(a) John Chen Seow Phun f&+ [RPE= a]
(b) Chee Teck Kwong E4 e
4. BREEKPMGCEITATAEITIT, HENEESRTHEHS. (RIS m]
5. #EHZE2006512 A 31HIEMEF 2 EEH#MZ $$384,000 (2005 £F: $$368,250) . IV
Lol
FREEBABYERAZT, EEUTRILEOE AL EBERYLSHTMEERIL:
6. WMBABRZESOEF1OFTURFMFEERZSHMZ LHHE, BRESS:
[RILEAN]

(1) SEMZRARZRG UK
(i) ZEFRBRIEHFURERSITERR BN E L HE T RRIESH, SEMZZERXAZEMRD ( RELRUZENEEE
B)ABEQNNELZERT, FREMBBRRLEAZZFFIEOEEALTRRZEAARZRN ( RIERLUARIE. M AX
ZE ), BEHNT:
(@) BARWEEZZBRMBEH (BREAEERRFTETRBEFMEZHORT ) FRETEXARAAEREBRMNESZH+
(60%) (FTWbHHE), Hif, HAEZEEEARAARFEZEZRG, ZREBRPZEHNFFEIARARNEGERERMNE
AHERZ=+ (20%) (RTHLITEHE).

(b) BHIMFELZ BT ZHEAR, ARELT o BREZBRBZEH, NECRERDALZILOIRAREUTRMZ
Ja, REBERRGELR, KAAREEEERG AE:

(i) EARWRELTZIR, FRREHT RRIES SUEMERERRSITER £ RMD AR
(i) EREHBRBEFHBI RN UK

(c) BEARYIAMFZEUBRFERXARFAS LEBRHEIEY, TUNEFEZEAETEZERFASFRERERBAZITE
FERFASHE (UKBEFEHE) AL,
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7. BAREFEIOT, BRFESSENEEAMNBEZRETEREENTARERT MZZERNMAZEHRD ( BERER{TE
HER IR MR I A MM A K, AMEEITEERNMAZEZROE , LRYFAEFHENCSELN ), EEHRRILTIZE MR

HEHEEMRERSEINAEREZRMALNETZ+ (10% ) . [REE]
8. RARZEFE76CTIME76ET, ERRTERXFANIANFIKBLRRMAFTHHARLLLER, EXHREOTFEY « HERH

(MUATZEXR), UEHEESREZBMRAFED “FRN" (MUATZEX ). EBHXNT:
(R FEN]
(i) FEFHMBIESHIZ S WM R/

(i) BMME ( BEFMFIESZ SN ZHHRS ) RIEHEFSAABHMREIMUEZEMEEN TR, METRIBHR
BFARZEETZAAESA, JRIAMERZEMEMER. ZOMFMKESZRHTZHAE,

LR R FH R RAE (CIREOWER”) .

BARYFEFZRECMBENFEELARFAS LERHESEY, TNEHERRETREEERFXSHKRERERBAZTRES
ERFASHH (UKREHEADE) AL,

RAEFRERERMBTAERI/ A AEF. HE. EHZRE (AFERZR, PUTHEXTHMRZER S L MRZA BT R Z M
XHZBIT, ERREM), MIERRIAFBSENE ZRRBEN.

AR

CHIERS T ABERRNELTAHASEFARARNRTEEBRMPERZBETZN ( 8% ) ZBRERM (FTERBARAMFEN . (FAEFR
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Proxy Form — Annual General Meeting
PSC Corporation Ltd

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
(Company Registration No. 197400888M)

Total Number of Shares held

1.

IMPORTANT
For Investors who have used their CPF moneys to buy shares of PSC Corporation Ltd, the Report is forwarded to them at the

request of their CPF Approved Nominees and is sent solely FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF Investors and shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported
to be used by them.

3. CPFinvestors who wish to vote should contact their CPF Approved Nominees.
I/We NRIC/Passport No.:
of
being (a) member/members of the abovenamed Company hereby appoint

NRIC/Passport Proportion of
Name Address Number Shareholdings (%)

(@

and/or (delete as appropriate)

©)

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting (defined below), as my/our proxy to atfend and fo vote for me/us on my/our behalf
and if necessary, to demand a poll, at the Thirty-Third Annual General Meeting of members of the Company (the “Meeting”) to be
held at 348 Jalan Boon Lay, Singapore 619529 on 25 April 2007 af 11 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

(Please indicate with an X" in the space provided whether you wish your proxy fo vote For or Against the Ordinary Resolutions as set
out in the Noftice of Annual General Meeting. In the absence of specific directions, the proxy will vote as the proxy deems fit.)

NO. ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Reports and Accounts

2. Declaration of Final Dividend

3. Re-election of Directors:
(a) Dr John Chen Seow Phun
(b) Mr Chee Teck Kwong

4. Re-appointment of Auditors

5. Approval of Directors’ Fees
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6. Authority for Directors to issue shares and convertible securities

7. Authority for Directors to issue shares pursuant fo the exercise
of Options granted under PSC Executives’ Share Option Scheme

8. Authority for Directors to buy back Shares pursuant to the Share Buyback Mandate

Dated this day of 2007

Signature(s) or Common Seal of Shareholder

Please Read Notes Overleaf



Notes:

D

2)

3)

)

5)

6

Pleuse insert the number of shures in the Compuny you hold, either in the Depository Reyister (us defined in Section 130A of the
Compunies Act) or in the Reyister of Memlbers, or both. If ho humber is inserted, the proxy form will be deemed to relute to dll the
shares in the Compuny held by you.

A member entitled to uttend und vote at the Meeting is entitled to uppoint a proxy to uttend und vote on his behdlf, A proxy need
not be u member of the Compuny. Where a member uppoints more than one proxy, the uppointments shall be deemed invalid
unless he specifies the proportion of his holding (expressed us u percentuge of the whole) to be represented by euch proxy.

If uny other proxy other thun the Chairman of the Meeting is o be uppointed, pleuse delete the words “The Chuirmun of the
Meeting” und insert the hame(s) und particulurs of the proxy/proxies to be uppointed in the box provided. If the box is left blank
oris incomplete, the Chuirman of the Meeting shadll be deemed to be uppointed ds your proxy. If the Chairman of the Meeting is
appointed us u proxy, this instrument shall be deemed to confer on him the right fo hominate a person to vote on his behdalf on a
show of hands.

The instrument uppointing u proxy shall, in the cuse of un individudl, be sighed by the appointor or his atforney duly authorised in
writing. In the cuse of a corpordation, it Must be executed either under its common sedl or sighed by its attorhey or a duly authorised
officer on behdlf of the corpordtion. A corporation who is a4 member may authorise by a resolution of its directors or other yoverning
body such person us it thinks fit to act us its representative ut the Meeting in uccordunce with Section 179 of the Compdunies Act.

The instrument uppointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Compuny ut 348 Jalan Booh Lay, Singupore
619529 hot less thun forty-eight (48) hours before the time uppointed for holding the Meeting.

The Compuny shull be entitled to reject un instrument appointing u proxy/proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed, illeyible,
or where the true intentions of the dppointor is not uscertuinuble from the instructions contuined in the instrument. The Compauny
may dlso reject uny instrument uppointing u proxy/proxies where the uppointor is not shown to huve shares in the Compuny entered
aguinst his name in the Depository Reyister as at 48 hours before the fime appointed for holding the Meeting, as certified by The
Centrul Depository (Pte) Limited to the Compuny.
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